
Summons to Meeting

Wednesday 30 May 2018

Audit Committee
Thursday 7 June 2018, 2.00 pm

Council Chamber - Allerdale House, Workington
Membership:

Councillor Mary Bainbridge (Chair) Councillor Neil Schofield (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Tony Annison Councillor John Colhoun
Councillor John Cook Councillor Duncan Fairbairn
Councillor Billy Miskelly

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting. If you have any questions 
or queries contact Dean Devine on 01900 702502.

Agenda
1. Minutes of meeting Monday 19 February 2018 of Audit Committee  (Pages 3 

- 8)

2. Apologies for Absence  

3. Declaration of Interests  
Councillors/Staff to give notice of any disclosable pecuniary interest, other 
registrable interest or any other interest and the nature of that interest relating to 
any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct.

4. Questions  
To answer questions from members of the public – submitted in writing or by 
electronic mail no later than 5.00 pm, 2 working days before the meeting.

5. Assurance Risk and Audit Year End Report 2017/18  (Pages 9 - 46)

6. Assurance Risk and Audit Plan and Strategy 2018/19  (Pages 47 - 58)

Page 1



7. Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18  (Pages 59 - 72)
A report recommending that Members approve the draft Annual Governance 
Statement 2017/18 in accordance with statutory requirements.

8. Grant Thornton Fee Letter 2018/19  (Pages 73 - 76)

Monitoring Officer

Date of Next Meeting:

Friday 27 July 2018, 2.00 pm
Allerdale House, Workington

Page 2



At a meeting of the Audit Committee held in Executive Meeting Room - Allerdale 
House, Workington on Monday 19 February 2018 at 2.00 pm

Members

Councillor Neil Schofield (Chair) Councillor John Colhoun (Vice-Chair)
Councillor Mary Bainbridge Councillor Billy Miskelly

Apologies for absence were received from  Councillor Tony Annison, Councillor John 
Cook and Councillor Duncan Fairbairn

Staff Present

K Fryer, I Hinde, B Lennox, P McKenzie, G Roach and E Thompson

Also Present

R McGahon

337. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 November 2017 were signed as a 
correct record.

338. Declaration of Interests 

None declared.

339. Questions 

None received.

340. Assurance, Risk and Audit Report for the Quarter Ending 31 December 
2017 

The Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager submitted a report which sought to 
inform the Audit Committee of the work performed by the Assurance, Risk and 
Audit Team in the third quarter of the financial year 2017/18.

Chargeable time for the Assurance, Risk and Audit service for the quarter was 
74.79%. This was below the planned target of 79.37%. The Assurance, Risk 
and Audit Manager explained that this reduction in time was due to a number of 
days spent on training staff members of the Assurance, Risk and Audit service.

Members noted the assurance activities for the quarter. The following reports 
had been submitted:

 Economic Growth 17/18
 Development Services 17/18.

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



It was acknowledged that since the reviews had been completed both sections 
had been reshaped within the authority, however the experience gained from 
carrying out the work had been beneficial and the agreed actions would improve 
the services as they move forward.

Members noted the following reviews which were in progress at 31 December 
2017:

 Ethics and Culture 17/18
 Business Continuity 17/18
 Financial Services 17/18
 AONB Follow up review 17/18
 Governance 17/18

100% of recommendations made by the Assurance, Risk and Audit service 
were accepted by management during the quarter.

The Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager updated members on the 
recommendations resulting from both audit reviews. 
Councillor Bainbridge requested further detailed updates on some outstanding 
items. The Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager agreed to obtain more 
information and distribute to members of the Audit Committee in due course via 
email.

Agreed

That the report be noted.

341. Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards Peer Review Results and Self-
Assessment Checklist 

The Assurance Risk and Audit Manager submitted a report which sought to 
provide assurance over the effectiveness of the Internal Audit Service at 
Allerdale Borough Council. 
The Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS) stated that an external 
assessment must be carried out at least every 5 years. The Allerdale Audit 
Committee agreed on 28 November 2016 for an external assessment to be 
conducted by the Lancashire and District Audit Group (LDAG).

As presented in the report, Members considered the results from the PSIAS 
Peer Review carried out by the LDAG, and a self-assessment completed by the 
Assurance Risk and Audit Manager.

In summary, the peer review concluded that the Councils Internal Audit Service 
‘conformed’ to all focus areas of the review, including Purpose and Positioning, 
Structure and Resources and Audit Execution.  

Agreed

That the report be noted.

Page 4



342. Local Code of Corporate Governance 

The Head of Governance submitted a report for members to review the Local 
Code of Corporate Governance.

Each Local Authority operates through a governance framework.  It is an 
interrelated system that brings together an underlying set of legislative 
requirements, governance principles and management processes.

The seven core principles from the CIPFA/SOLACE Delivering Good 
Governance Framework have been adapted for the local Government context 
and incorporated into the Councils Local Code of Corporate Governance, which 
sets out the means by which the council intends to manage its governance 
arrangements.

Recommended

That Council be requested to approve the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance.

343. Treasury Management Strategy, Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy Statement 2018/19 

The Financial Services Manager submitted a report which sought the Audit 
Committee to approve:

 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Investment Strategy, 
setting out the Council’s proposed treasury management activities for the 
year and policies for the prudent management of its investments

 A statement of the Council’s policy on making Minimum Revenue 
Provision, indicating how it was proposed to discharge the duty to make 
prudent Minimum Revenue Provision in the forthcoming financial year

 A set of prescribed prudential and treasury indicators for the forthcoming 
and following years – including the Council’s Authorised Borrowing Limit 
– demonstrating that its capitals expenditure plans were affordable and 
that external borrowing was within prudent and sustainable levels

The Treasury Management Strategy Statement set out the Council’s proposed 
treasury management activities for the year – based on budget proposals, 
interest rate forecasts and economic outlook and included the following issues:

 The current treasury position

 Treasury indicators required by CIPFAs Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities and Treasury Management in the Public 
Services: Code of Practice and accompanying sector guidance

 Economic background and prospects for interest rates

 Borrowing strategy

Page 5



 Policy on borrowing in advance of need

 Debt rescheduling

 Policy on the use of derivatives

 The process adopted for reviewing and addressing the training needs of 
officers and members in relation to treasury management

 Use of treasury management consultants including services provided 
and procedures employed for monitoring the quality of those services

The Annual Investment Strategy for 2018/19 set out the Council’s policies for 
the prudent financial management of its investments and for giving priority first 
to the security of those investments and secondly, to their liquidity and included:

 Procedures for determining the counterparties with whom investments 
may be placed, including the Council’s approach on the use of credit 
ratings and other sources of information to assess credit and 
counterparty risk

 The types of investment instruments that may be used

 Limits placed on the amount that may be invested with any single 
institution or group of institutions

 Limits on the maximum period for which funds may be prudently 
committed

 Reporting arrangements

The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement set out how the Council 
would discharge the duty under the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and 
Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003 (as amended) to make prudent 
Minimum Revenue Provision in the financial year and included the following:

 A description of what Minimum Revenue Provision intended to achieve

 Commentary on the Council’s underlying duty to make prudent provision 
and ensure that debt was repaid over a period commensurate with that 
over which the capital expenditure provided benefits, or – for borrowing 
supported by central government funding (Revenue Support Grant) – 
over the period implicit in the determination of that funding

 Consideration of the ‘options’ for calculating Minimum Revenue Provision 
outlined in the statutory guidance on Minimum Revenue Provision and 
the restrictions on their use

 The policy proposed for the forthcoming year

Page 6



Members were informed that revisions had been made to the statutory 
framework for treasury management, detailed in the report, which had been 
reflected in the report to be agreed for 2018/19. Those changed had not 
required the council to make any significant changes to the policies previously 
adopted.

Councillor J Colhoun moved the recommendations. This was seconded by 
Councillor M Bainbridge. Members unanimously agreed that the 
recommendations be approved.

Recommended

That Council be requested to approve:

1. The proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Investment Strategy for 2018/19 (included in sections 2 and 3 of 
Appendix 1) 

2. The Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement (set out in section 4 
of Appendix 1) 

3. The prudential and treasury indicators - including the Council’s 
Authorised Borrowing Limit (set out in Section 5 of Appendix 1). 

344. External Audit Plan 2017/18 

R McGahon, Grant Thornton UK LLP presented the Audit Committee with the 
external auditors’ Audit Plan for the Council for the year ending 31 March 2018. 

The plan set out an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory 
audit, to help the Council understand the consequences of the auditors’ work, 
discuss issues of risk and the concept of materiality and to identify any areas 
where the Council may have requested that additional procedures be 
undertaken.

Significant risks had been identified, including the revenue cycle and fraudulent 
transactions, management override of controls, valuation of pension fund net 
liability and valuation of property, plant and equipment and investment property. 
The auditors set out their procedures to each risk.

The report also set out the auditors’ plans to assess whether the Council had 
put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, known as the Value for Money (VfM) 
conclusion.

Agreed

That the external auditors’ Audit Plan for the Council for the year ending 31 
March 2018 be noted.

Page 7



345. Annual Certification Letter 2016/17 

R McGahon, Grant Thornton UK LLP presented the external auditor’s annual 
letter on certification work for the Council for the year ended 31 March 2017. 
The auditors were required to certify the Housing Benefit subsidy claim 
submitted by the Council. 

The external auditors had certified the Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the 
financial year 2016/17 relating to subsidy claimed of £24.205 million. 

There were a small number of issues arising from the certification work which 
the auditors wished to highlight for the Council’s attention. Through their initial 
testing phase of rent allowance cases one error was detected which meant 
further testing was required. During the additional testing one further error was 
identified. The financial impact on the councils claim was only £411.53 and 
relatively insignificant to the total subsidy receivable.

Agreed

That the annual letter on certification work for the Council for the year ended 31 
March 2017 be noted.

Actions 

Action 1 – That the Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager obtains further 
detailed updates on the outstanding recommendations from the 
Economic Growth 17/18 and Development Services 17/18 reviews 
and distribute to members of the Audit Committee in due course 
via email.

The meeting closed at 3.32 pm

Page 8



 Allerdale Borough Council

Audit Committee - 7 June 2018

Assurance, Risk and Audit Year End Report 2017/18

The Reason for the Decision To inform the Committee of the work performed 
by the Assurance, Risk and Audit Team in the 
financial year 2017/18 and to provide the annual 
assurance opinion.

Summary of options considered N/A 

Recommendations That the report is accepted and considered as 
part of the approval of the Annual Governance 
Statement 2017/18 subject to any additional 
information that the committee may require.

Financial / Resource Implications As outlined in the report.

Legal Implications There is a legal requirement for the Council to 
publish an Annual Governance Statement which 
must include an independent assurance opinion.

Community Safety Implications Acceptance of this report has no community 
safety implications.

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

Acceptance of this report has no Health and 
Safety implications. Consideration should be 
given to the activities reported and how they 
contribute to the organisations Risk Management 
Framework.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Equality is considered during the Assurance, Risk 
and Audit activities.

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

Acceptance of the Assurance, Risk and Audit 
Team’s work provides a direct and indirect 
contribution to the achievement of the Council’s 
priorities, in accordance with the Assurance, Risk 
and Audit Service Plan.

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Councillor Joan Ellis
(e-mail: joan.ellis@allerdale.gov.uk)

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Lead Officer Emma Thompson, Assurance, Risk and Audit 
Manager. 01900 702988
emma.thompson@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) Y

Legal Y Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: Assurance, Risk and Audit reports and working papers.

1 Introduction

1.1 The Council adopted the Good Governance Standard for Public Services in 
2005. The standard provides a national framework for assessing good 
governance practice. CIPFA/SOLACE has published an update to the 
standard – a Framework for Delivering Good Governance in Local 
Government – to make the original standard directly relevant to Local 
Government. In December 2016 CIPFA updated the Framework, which 
includes 7 core principles that need to be taken into consideration. I can 
confirm that the Governance Group has considered these elements and 
principles when compiling the 2017/18 Annual Governance Statement (AGS). 

1.2 The Council has made a public statement detailing how it will meet these 
governance commitments, this is set out in Allerdale Borough Councils Local 
Code of Corporate Governance which was reviewed and agreed in February 
2018.

1.3 The Council’s Commitment to Local Communities 2015-19 priorities is very 
much at the forefront of the organisation and a structured framework is in 
place driving every individual service plan moving forward. Quarterly 
performance reports are published detailing the progression of the agreed 
council plan projects.

1.4      The annual assurance gathering process was completed collectively by the 
Heads of Service for the respective areas. This increases the visibility of the 
assurance profile for the organisation, all in one place.

1.5 This report has been prepared in line with the CIPFA statement on the role of 
the Head of Internal Audit and the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards, 
2450 Overall Opinions. 

Page 10



2 Summary of Work Completed 

2.1 The table below summarises the assurances for the work completed by the 
Assurance Risk and Audit (ARA) service during the financial year 2017/18. An 
opinion is provided for each area of the control environment reviewed.

Opinion
System Reviewed Comprehensive Substantial Limited Minimal
16/17 work carried 
forward
ICT 0 6 2 0
Creditors 3 3 0 0
Debtors 1 7 0 0
Treasury 2 2 0 0
Capital accounting 2 1 0 0
Payroll 5 4 1 0
Main Accounting 5 1 0 0

17/18 work
Ethics and Culture 1 3 0 0
Economic Growth 0 3 0 0
Human Resources 0 0 5 0
AONB  0 2 1       0 
Business Continuity 0 0 4 0
Development Services 0 5 0 0

2.2     The definitions of the opinions are as follows:

Comprehensive Assurance There is a sound system of controls 
designed to meet objectives, manage 
risks and controls are consistently 
applied in all the areas reviewed.

Substantial Assurance There is a good system of controls and 
risks are managed. However, there are 
opportunities for improvement in the 
design or consistency of application that 
will assist in the achievement of 
objectives identified as being at risk in 
the areas reviewed.

Limited Assurance Key controls exist to help achieve 
objectives and manage principle risks. 
However, there are opportunities for 
improvement in the overall control 
environment which would enhance the 
design and application of controls, 
thereby assisting the achievement of 
objectives identified as being at risk in 
the areas reviewed.

Page 11



Minimal Assurance The absence of basic key controls or the 
inconsistent application of key controls 
is so severe that the audit area is open 
to abuse or error. Risks to objectives are 
not being managed

2.3     Three reports were issued as final during the final quarter of 2017/18 (see 
appendix a), the areas were:

 AONB
 Business Continuity
 Ethical Culture

2.4     Additional assurance activities have contributed to informing the audit opinion 
conclusion. These include participation in working groups, various governance 
boards and specific requests for project or systems assurances. This 
corporate awareness and engagement assists with the evaluation of all 
aspects of the control environment in particular those relating to culture, 
ethical values and human factors. The main areas of additional assurance 
during 2017/18 include:

 Membership of the Commissioning and Procurement Board
 Supporting the Project X project team
 Wise grant return assurance
 Supporting the GDPR Project Group

3 Performance against the 2017/18 Audit Plan

3.1 Time Summary 

Activity Planned 
Days

Actual 
Days

Statutory Assurance Reviews 80 67.25
Assurance and Risk Support 30 23.45
Agreed Action Follow up 10 12.91
Completion of 2016/17 reviews 20 20.37
Assurance Reviews 88 66.72
Democratic Representation 25 21.52
Corporate Support (inc Peer 
Review)

123 165.31

Projects 25 21.52
Advice 10 3.99
Investigations 10 5.57
Fraud Activities 22 12.60
Risk Management Facilitation 8 3.31
HR Management 30 25.18
Total Audit Time 481 449.70

Non-Chargeable

Page 12



Non chargeable time 50 52.20
Training 65 64.56
Sickness / other absences 10 16.79

Total Non-Chargeable Time 125 133.55

Total Days 606 583.25
Annual Leave / bank holidays 104 91.85

Total Days 710 675.10

3.2 The chargeable time at year end was 77.10% which is slightly below the 
planned   target of 81.77%, but is considered an excellent achievement based 
on changes within the team during the year. The reduced output of days 
available relates to the recruitment dates of the new posts being estimated at 
the time of the revised plan and also relates to less Governance Support 
Assistant resource than previously planned.

4       Consultancy Activities 

    4.1 The team provides assurance and risk advice to support the organisation in 
the achievement of its objectives, during 2017/18 advice and consultancy 
work has been performed in the following areas:

 Arcus procurement evaluation
 Governance Group

4.2 The team also supports a number of corporate groups and project boards 
which provides a greater depth of insight into strategic objectives and provides 
valuable advice to the group on risk management, control and governance. 
The groups include:
 The Health and Wellbeing Group
 The Employee Engagement Group
 The Procurement and Commissioning Board
 Fleet Project

5        Risk Management

5.1 In line with Public Sector Internal Audit Standard 2120 a review is in progress 
of the effectiveness of the risk management processes. This report will be 
presented to management upon completion of the testing.

5.2 The ARA Manager has facilitated two well attended Risk Workshops with all 
Members of the Senior Management Team and Third Tier Managers. These 
sessions were to focus on to Corporate Risks and to look at risks associated 
with information management and contract management. Feedback from the 
workshops is very positive and the organisation is becoming much more risk 
aware and using these tools to support effective decision making. The 

Page 13



outcomes from these workshops are also used to inform the Audit Planning 
process going forward.

5.3 This proactive engagement has led to an increase in the number of requests 
for risk profiling support from the ARA Manager, these meetings are designed 
to challenge and encourage risk managers to explore, evaluate and prioritise 
risks to create an action plan to address a specific plan, project or issue.  
Support has been provided for the following areas:

 Parking income collection
 Multi Storey Carpark
 Lillyhall purchase

6 Corporate Fraud

6.1     The ARA service works in support of the organisation and its approach to 
improving fraud awareness and the detection of corporate fraud. As the key 
contact for the National Fraud Initiative (NFI) the ARA Manager plays a key 
role in the coordination and communication of the requirements of this Cabinet 
Office initiative. Fraud risks are included on the organisational Service Risk 
Register and are reviewed in line with the Integrated Assurance Strategy.

6.2 An instance of Fraud was reported to this Committee 21 August 2017. This 
related to an online credit card payment for Council Tax, where the card 
holder was not present. A refund was requested on this account and was paid 
into the bank account provided. Subsequently the card provider informed us 
that the credit card payment was not authorised by the card holder and they 
reversed the transaction. This action has resulted in a financial loss of 
£2,967.10. Testing of Council Tax refunds as part of the Council Tax Review 
2017/18 did not highlight any concerns in this area.

6.3 A monthly Fraud Bulletin is circulated on the intranet to highlight instances of 
fraud in public sector to employees and members to raise awareness of this 
risk. A Corporate Fraud Group has been formed as a forum to discuss Fraud 
hot topics and working practices. 

6.4 Allerdale along with four other Cumbria authorities have applied to participate 
in the NFI pilot scheme to tackle fraud and error in business rates. Allerdale 
have applied as the lead authority which involves helping to ensure:

 all bodies extract and submit data as required;
 all bodies review and investigate matches appropriately; and
 all bodies report outcome from the pilot as required. 

The partner authorities for this application are Copeland Borough Council, 
Carlisle City Council, South Lakeland Council and Eden District Council. 

Page 14



7     Quality Assurance and Improvement Program

7.1 The ARA Manager completed the Leader to Leader Program sponsored by 
Allerdale. The program ended in June 2017. The monthly workshops have 
been extremely beneficial to the ARA Manager in the development of 
management skills.  Since this course the ARA Manager has taken the 
opportunity to take on additional strategic management responsibilities for the 
Human Resources Service on a temporary basis to cover part of the Head of 
Governance responsibilities who is on maternity leave. This has allowed the 
ARA Manager to use and develop the skills gained from the Leader to Leader 
programme. 

7.2      The ARA Officer has almost completed the AAT Level Two course at Lakes 
College which started in September 2017. She has also gained her Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors IIACert level in September 2017.

7.3 Audit professionals from Wyre Council and Lancaster Council conducted an 
external review of the Internal Audit Service at Allerdale Borough Council 
during 2017/18. They completed interviews with key officers and members 
associated with the work of internal audit and those charged with governance. 
They also reviewed all documentation detailed in the agreed Memorandum of 
Understanding. The assessment provided an overall opinion on ‘Conforms’ 
with the standards for all areas reviewed.

7.4 As part of this review the Assurance Risk and Audit Manager completed a 
PSIAs self-assessment, which was presented to this Committee on 12 
February. This document was used to inform the Peer Review, I can confirm 
that the external review team found this to be an accurate representation of 
the Internal Audit Service at Allerdale Borough Council. This self-assessment 
will be completed on an annual basis as part of the quality assurance and 
improvement programme.

7.5 To measure effectiveness an internal measure is used relating to 
Management’s acceptance of recommendations – 100 % for the year

Assurance, Risk and Audit is designed to add value and assist management 
in achieving the organisations overall key aims and objectives. An indicator for 
ARA performance is that 100% of all recommendations made are accepted by 
management, only one ‘Low risk’ recommendation was not accepted during 
2017/18 this was presented to Audit Committee on 21 August 2018 and 
related to scanning documentation for corporate credit card administration. 

7.6 The team has created a ‘survey monkey’ based questionnaire for client 
feedback, see appendix b for the results. Following historically low response 
rates the team were set personal objectives in 2017/18 to increase feedback 
from their clients. We have since seen an increase in the number of 
responses received, well done to the team for prioritising this.

Page 15



8 Management’s implementation of agreed actions (recommendations)

8.1      At the financial year end there are eight agreed actions overdue, seven of 
these are in progress and one has now been moved to June for completion. 
There has been an increased momentum and focus on the implementation of 
ARA actions and these now form part of SMT KPIs discussed monthly and the 
Heads of Service appraisal process. Agreed actions are now maintained on a 
shared one drive document which is accessible to all action owners to 
increase visibility, accountability and responsibility. 

9 Corporate Risks and Issues Log

9.1 The latest high level risk report is attached as appendix c for your information, 
the full Corporate Risks Log is available on the intranet at all times for 
members to review as part of their oversight role and to support all their 
activities within the Council. 

10 Opinion

  10.1 It is my opinion that the independent assurance reviews completed by the 
Assurance Risk and Audit Team and the evidence gathering processes 
employed by the Governance Group provide substantial assurance over the 
adequacy and effectiveness of the organisations framework for risk 
management, control and governance. 

11 Finance and or Resource Implications

11.1 There are currently no finance or resource issues that have not been 
previously reported to the Committee.

12 Legal Implications and Risks

12.1 Acceptance of this report has no legal, health and safety or risk management   
implications other than the consideration of the Corporate Risks and Issues 
Log by the Committee in terms of oversight of the effectiveness of Risk 
Management Framework.

13 Recommendations

13.1 That the report is accepted  and considered as part of the approval of the 
Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 subject to any additional information 
that the committee may require.

Emma Thompson
Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager

Page 16



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

Business Continuity Audit Review 2017/18 

Introduction

As part of the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan, a review has been undertaken of the controls and procedures in place in respect of the 
Business continuity Function at Allerdale Borough Council (ABC). The aim of this review is to follow up Internal Audit agreed actions 
and to provide management with assurance that the system is robust and operating as intended and provide recommendations for 
improvement to add value, if appropriate.  Allerdale use a software system to store all business continuity plans and information called 
BCP4ME, users can access this web based application anywhere there is an internet connection, this solution was procured prior to 
the organisations move to the cloud based Office 365 package.

As part of this review a survey was issued to key officers to obtain their views and feedback on how business continuity arrangements 
are working here at Allerdale, 13 responses were received and used to assess the controls in place managing business continuity risk.

Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved during the course of the review for their help and assistance.

The objective and scope for this audit was defined in the audit brief issued to all relevant staff on 11 October 2017.

Walkthrough testing and results

Area Control Objective Control 
Environment 

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Procedures, 
Training, 
management 
and 
compliance

Business Continuity 
plans have been 
documented and 
communicated.

Efficiency and 
effectiveness;
Reputation; Business 
minded;
Transparent and 
accountable;
Data integrity; 
Effective/efficient 
processes

Limited Discussions with the responsible officer for 
Business continuity and on reviewing the IT 
application BCP4ME where all business 
continuity plans are stored, it was apparent 
that the information stored there is not 
regularly reviewed and there is little 
awareness of the corporate policy with 
regards to Business Continuity. 
Agreed Action 3

The employee survey results stated 64% of 

P
age 17



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

those respondents hadn’t received any 
business continuity training to date. However 
on speaking with the responsible officer for 
business continuity he advised that a desk top 
exercise was carried out in June 2017 with 
Heads of Service. This was planned on an ad 
hoc basis, outcomes and actions were not 
available to review and there are no clear 
plans of future training. 
Agreed Action 4

A Business Impact Assessment (BIA) has 
been completed for the whole organisation. It 
details recovery priorities and potential effects 
of an interruption to critical business 
operation. The BIA details recovery timescales 
and calculates a risk score which should 
trigger mitigating actions if required. IT 
dependencies are also detailed within the BIA 
and where possible recovery 
options/alternative solutions are provided. The 
BIA document on BCP4ME expired on 14/5/17 
and is therefore due to be reviewed in line with 
the changing operational environment. 

BCP4ME is currently only accessible to 32 
members of staff from across all areas of the 
council. Upon requesting new user access to 
BCP4ME through the systems support service 
at Egtons a delay of 27 days to receive access 
was experienced. Other staff members also 
reported problems with the efficacy of this 
service. The Egtons contract has been 
requested but has not been made available to 
date. Agreed action 1

P
age 18



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

BCP4ME is not accessible to all staff and 
based on the results of the employee survey 
there is little awareness of the business 
continuity process or BCP4ME. 
Agreed Action 1 & 4

The International Organisation Standards 
(ISO) best practice guidance for business 
continuity was used as a point of reference for 
this review. Allerdale Borough Council does 
not conform to ISO 22301:2012. It is unknown 
if this has been considered as part of the 
approach to managing business continuity 
risks. 
Details of recovery solutions are detailed on 
the BIA (Business Impact assessment) which 
is held on BCP4ME. Recovery priorities are 
detailed. ICT has a separate BIA which is 
scenario based. It is unknown whether these 
recovery solutions are realistic and 
appropriate as these have never been tested.
Agreed Action 3

A full employee contact list exists on 
BCP4ME, upon testing the list it was found not 
to be current with staff updates not made. This 
list contains staffs work contact details. It was 
confirmed that no one person is responsible 
for updating this. 
Area of improvement 3
Some areas of the business have a separate 
document that does contain personal contact 
details however this approach is not 

P
age 19



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

consistent across all areas of the council. The 
list used for emergency planning purposes 
includes out of hours and personal details, this 
may be more suitable for this area. 
Agreed Action 2

The Business continuity plan is not prepared 
based on different scenarios. The plan is 
designed to be generic and can be adapted 
depending on the incident. 

People Adequate and 
appropriate staff and 
resources exist to 
meet Business 
Continuity 
Management needs

Efficiency and 
effectiveness;
Reputation; Business 
minded;
Transparent and 
accountable;
Effective/efficient 
processes

Limited There are two designated senior officers who 
hold responsibility for business continuity and 
the administration of BCP4ME. However in the 
event of an incident any senior manager can 
activate the plan.  

There is no one person responsible for co-
ordinating a response to an incident or 
reinstating services. Actions from the plan will 
be delegated at the time of an incident. It is 
unclear from BCP4ME who has what 
responsibilities ‘day to day’ of business 
continuity and therefore there should be a 
corporate response to this
Agreed action 3

Awareness of business continuity 
management across the organisation is low 
with many people being unaware where to find 
the plan and what their responsibilities would 
be if activated. 
Agreed action 3 & 4

Key third parties and suppliers are identified 
within the plan however contact details are not 

P
age 20



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

present for all. 
Area of improvement 1

There is appropriate insurance cover for 
Business continuity events. Copies of the 
insurance policy have been obtained and 
there are no changes planned for this policy. 
The policy is due for renewal in May 2018 and 
covers property damage, business interruption 
and computer risks. Some specific cover 
exists to cover cyber-attacks. 

Testing of 
business 
continuity 

Regular disaster 
recovery and 
contingency planning 
meetings take place 
and recovery plans 
are regularly tested.

Efficiency and 
effectiveness;
Reputation; Business 
minded;
Data integrity; 
Effective/efficient 
processes

Limited There is no corporate strategy in terms of how 
frequently business continuity meetings 
should take place and who should be 
involved. However the designated officer has 
attended the majority of the departmental 
team meetings in order to raise awareness of 
business continuity. There are still some 
outstanding teams to see however beyond this 
there are no further plans made to date. 
Agreed Action 3

There are currently no plans to carry out 
testing of the BCP. The plan itself makes 
reference to carrying out a desktop exercise at 
least annually of each of the key activities. 
The last desktop exercise was carried out in 
June 2017 with the Senior Management 
Team. This was scenario based and 
considered business continuity plans but did 
not look at the recovery process. 
Agreed Action 3

P
age 21



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

Support 
services

Key services 
responsible for 
enabling the recovery 
of other services are 
covered in detail within 
the Business 
Continuity 
Management 
documentation

Efficiency and 
effectiveness;
Reputation; Business 
minded;
Transparent and 
accountable;
Data integrity; 
Effective/efficient 
processes

Limited A separate BCP for IT services is stored on 
BCP4ME. The plan is based on 12 different 
incident scenarios. The document states it 
would be reviewed every 6 months or after a 
business continuity event. There is no 
evidence that this has been reviewed. 
Area of improvement 2

There is a daily and weekly backup process in 
place for all operations. This is stored safely 
and securely offsite.

After testing of the hardware inventory 
currently held by ICT, details are not up to 
date, including the location of the hardware. 
This is an ongoing live action from ICT audit 
16/17.

Areas for improvement 

Number Area for Improvement
1. Key third parties and suppliers contact details are updated on the plan.  

2. The ICT BCP stored on BCP4ME should be reviewed in line with the recommended review time stated on the 
document. 

3. The Staff contact list on BCP4ME is reviewed to ensure it is up to date.

P
age 22



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

Agreed Actions

Number Agreed Actions Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due date and 
response

1. For the responsible persons to meet 
with ICT to discuss the viability of 
using Microsoft Office 365 to 
document and communicate 
Business Continuity Plans efficiently. 
If this isn’t viable to begin process for 
alternative procurement of system.

Effective/efficient processes, 
Data integrity, Business 
minded;

Medium Agreed 

Project Manager. Property 
Manager

Due date: 31st March 2018

2. For the responsible persons to meet 
regularly with the emergency planning 
team to review any areas of 
duplicated work and share best 
practice and knowledge.

Effective/efficient processes; 
Data integrity

Medium Agreed 
Project Manager. Property 
Manager

Due date: 30th April 2018

3. There should be a clear corporate 
policy with regards to Business 
Continuity. This should outline a clear 
strategy for defining the council’s 
commitment to the management of 
Business Continuity Risks. This 
should include how often plans are 
reviewed, training & meeting 
requirements and testing schedules. 
The policy should be clear who is 
responsible for what and when. When 
the policy is agreed this should be 
included in the employee induction 

Efficiency and effectiveness;
Reputation; Business 
minded;
Transparent and 
accountable;
Data integrity; 
Effective/efficient processes

Medium Agreed 
Project Manager. Property 
Manager

Due date: This is dependent 
on time required to create 
policy. DB & PM to update

P
age 23



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

process.
4. For the responsible persons to launch 

the new business continuity system to 
employees and members by 
attending team meetings and holding 
briefing sessions. This should include 
training for 3rd Tier Managers, 
introduction of business continuity on 
team meeting agendas 

Efficiency and effectiveness;
Reputation; Business 
minded;
Transparent and 
accountable;
Data integrity

Medium Agreed 
Project Manager. Property 
Manager

Due date: 31st December 
2018 provisionally. This is 
dependent on timescales for 
policy to be written and 
approved.

AONB Audit Review 2017/18

Introduction

As part of the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan, a follow up review has been undertaken of the agreed actions to improve controls and 
procedures put in place in respect of the Solway Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB) at Allerdale Borough Council 
(ABC). The aim of this follow up review is to provide management with assurance that the agreed actions have been completed 
and provide recommendations for improvement to add value, if appropriate.  

Assurance Risk and Audit would like to thank all staff involved during the course of the follow up review for their help and 
assistance.

The objective and scope for the AONB follow up review was defined in the audit brief issued to all relevant staff on 18 October 17.

Testing and results

Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Financial 
Management

Ensure financial 
arrangements are in 
line with ABC 
Financial Regulations 

Achievement of 
business objectives.  
Data integrity; 
Efficient and effective 

Substantial The AONB Barclays bank account was closed 
in July 2015 and the balance transferred to 
Allerdales General Ledger. Transactions 
completed at the AONB now go through the 

P
age 24



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

and Accounting 
instructions.
 

process; Safeguard 
assets; Compliance.

Allerdale General Ledger. 
The use of a volunteer petty cash imprest has 
ceased and the reimbursement of appropriate 
expenditure is now through the official petty 
cash imprest held by Silloth AONB.  
The Asset Inventory has been improved and 
now includes date of count, person 
undertaking the count, item replacement value 
and next count date. Going forward the 
current value for items will also be added.  
See recommendation one. 

All income received by Tourist Information 
Centre (TIC) Silloth is paid into Silloth Post 
Office, using a paying-in book. Testing 
identified that all payments (for books on sale) 
from 2016 and 2017 have been unidentified 
and have been credited to the ABC suspense 
account.  
Going forward, all payments need to be 
accurately referenced to ensure these 
transactions can be credited to the appropriate 
accounting code to avoid this happening in the 
future. See recommendation two. 

Procurement Review procurement 
procedures and 
practices to ensure 
best value for services 
and goods procured in 
line with Financial 
Regulations.

Efficient and effective 
processes.  Business 
minded; Transparent 
and accountable; 
Compliance.

Limited Testing confirmed that ABC Financial 
Regulations were not being followed with 
regard to obtaining quotations for orders over 
£2,000. 

The purchase of Personal Protective 
Equipment was reviewed to establish if these 
purchases were providing value for money by 
using the framework suppliers used in other 
areas of the business. It was found that 

P
age 25



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

purchases made were for items which were 
not considered to be the most appropriate 
protective workwear for their roles. All clothing 
procured should be branded with the AONB 
logo for both professional, advertising and tax 
purposes. Refer to recommendation three.  

The continued use of one supplier for design 
and printing services without obtaining further 
comparative quotes does not comply with 
ABC’s Financial Regulations.  All future design 
and print requirements should follow the 
procurement regulations and if it is considered 
that the work involved is so specialised that 
only one supplier can provide the service 
required, then a procurement exemption form 
should be completed and authorised by the 
Corporate Director. See recommendation 
four and five.

Management 
of Operations

Efficient and effective 
operations are in place 
To ensure volunteer 
procedures are 
communicated and 
followed. 

Efficient and effective 
processes;  
Reputation; 

Substantial Volunteer procedures are in place however 
there is a lack of awareness of these within 
the AONB team. There is no record how or 
when these have been communicated with 
volunteers or the team. See recommendation 
six.

Agreed Actions

Number Agreed Actions Associated risks Priority Responsibility, due 
date and response

1 The asset register should be completed annually and 
include the value of items held.

Asset management, 
financial regulations. 

Low Learning and Volunteer 
Manager. 30 Jun 2018 

2 All income from TIC Silloth needs to be easily identified Financial regulations. Low Completed as part of the 

P
age 26



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

so that it can be allocated correctly to 1056/32103.  review.
3 Purchase of Protective Personal Equipment (PPE) 

should be via the supplier frameworks in place. The 
items should be appropriate for the safe completion of 
individuals duties and be branded with the AONB logo.

Efficiency and 
effectiveness, value for 
money.

Medium Accepted and will be 
implemented 
immediately by the 
AONB Manager.

4 All future design and print requirements should be open 
to competition and if it is considered that the work 
involved is so specialised that only one supplier can 
provide the service required, then a procurement 
exemption form should be completed and authorised by 
the Corporate Director (Resources).

Value for Money, 
financial regulations, 
risk management.

Medium Accepted and will be 
implemented 
immediately by the 
AONB Manager.

5 Staff need to be made aware of the current ABC 
Financial Regulations, and these should be followed in 
respect of all procurement.

Asset management, 
value for money, 
financial regulations, 
risk management.

Medium Accepted and will be 
implemented 
immediately by the 
AONB Manager.

6 All AONB employees and volunteers should review the 
volunteer procedures, confirm their understanding and 
comply with these going forward.

Financial regulations. Low Learning and Volunteer 
Manager 30 June 2018.

Ethical Culture Audit Review 2017/18

Introduction

As part of the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan, a review has been undertaken of the Ethical Culture at Allerdale Borough Council (ABC). 
The aim of this review is to provide management with assurance that this element of the governance framework is operating as 
intended and provide recommendations for improvement to add value, if appropriate.  As part of this review an employee survey was 
completed to obtain their views on elements of the ethical framework here at Allerdale, 112 employees responded. A further survey 
was issued relating to integrity and ethical values, 106 employees participated.

Assurance Risk and Audit (ARA) would like to thank all employees involved during the course of the review for their help and 
assistance.

The objective and scope for this audit was defined in the audit brief issued to all relevant staff on 3 November 2017.

P
age 27



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

Testing and Results

Area Control Objective Control 
Environment

Assurance 
Opinion

Commentary

Delivering 
Good 
Governance

A robust framework is 
in place to deliver the 
principles of good 
governance

Objectives, 
compliance, 
safeguard assets

Comprehensive The framework for the delivery of the 
principles of good governance is strong at 
Allerdale. The Governance Group (made up of 
key Officers) meet regularly throughout the 
year to continually review the evidence and 
activities supporting the principles of good 
governance. Heads of Services provide 
assurance statements annually to 
demonstrate how these principles are 
deployed in practise throughout the 
organisation. The Local Code of Corporate 
Governance has been reviewed in 2018 and is 
in-line with Local Authority guidance. 

80% of employees (who participated) 
answered that they agreed that management 
effectively monitor and provide oversight in the 
activities of their service.

Maintaining 
an Ethical 
Culture

Systems and 
processes are in place 
to support a culture of 
transparency and 
openness for 
stakeholders

Objectives, 
compliance, 
safeguard assets

Substantial From the employees who participated in the 
Ethics survey, 75.93% were aware of and 
knew where to find the whistleblowing policy. 
The top three answers for 'who' they would 
report matters to were the Monitoring Officer, 
ARA and Line Manager. Further training is 
planned via the e learning system to embed 
understanding of the whistleblowing policy in 
Allerdale. 

Access to the Gifts and Hospitality Register 
could be improved, this was previously 

P
age 28



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

accessible by all users and was published on 
the Allerdale website. This document is now 
only accessible to a restricted number of 
users, there are five entries for officers 
2017/18 compared to ten on the last published 
version in 2012/13 which related to 5 officers 
and 5 members. (Recommendation 1)

Declarations of interest for members are 
published on the Allerdale website, they are 
not published for Senior Officers. This may be 
an opportunity to improve the transparency 
and openness at Allerdale to extend this 
process to this group of decision makers. 
(Area of improvement 1)

The Declaration of Pecuniary Interest forms 
for members could be improved. Although 
these are accessible on the Allerdale Website 
the forms are not completed consistently. This 
area would benefit from a full review to ensure 
the forms are completed consistently and that 
members understand what information is 
required. (See recommendation 5)

Developing 
People – 
Ethical 
Behaviours

Employees and 
Members are aware of 
their roles and 
responsibilities in 
relation to good 
governance at 
Allerdale

Objectives, 
compliance, 
safeguard assets

Substantial This organisation defines the key roles and 
responsibilities within its constitution. There is 
a Code of Conduct which applies to members 
and one which applies to Officers. The code of 
conduct for Officers is not regularly 
communicated but does form part of the 
induction pack. 

New members are issued a standard new 
member letter with documents enclosed. The 

P
age 29



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

member code of conduct is not included. The 
last code of conduct training sessions were 
September 2016 and January 2018 on both 
occasions 16 members attended (5 attended 
both). With a membership of 56 councils this 
concludes only 48% of members have 
received code of conduct refresher training. 
(Recommendation 2). 

A really strong message coming through on 
the surveys was that employees are really 
clear of their responsibilities and 84% believe 
that their service considers customer impacts 
in its decisions and actions.

A review was completed to provide assurance 
that employees who were professional 
members, were compliant with the Continuous 
Professional Development (CPD) 
requirements of their professional body. All 
five professionals tested provided evidence 
and assurance that the complied with their 
CPD requirements.

Managing 
risks relating 
to Ethical 
Culture

Risks and 
performance are 
managed through 
robust internal control 
and strong public 
financial management.

Objectives, 
compliance, 
safeguard assets

Substantial The risk management maturity level at 
Allerdale is assessed 'risk managed' the 
assurance over the financial management is 
substantial with comprehensive assurance in 
place for budget management. The Corporate 
Risk relating to the need to the cultural change 
required to achieve organisational change 
requires updating to reflect the current 
management activities in place. (Area for 
improvement 2)

37% of employees participating in the survey 

P
age 30



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

believed decisions are made on options 
appraisals and risk assessments to achieve 
best value. A review of the reporting process 
is already in progress by The Policy Team to 
strengthen the information provided at 
decision making.

47% believe that management sometimes 
override policies, procedure and work place 
rules. This and other responses relating to 
management behaviour in the employee 
survey is a key priority for the HR team to 
review, employee engagement sessions are in 
progress to understand more about these 
employee perceptions. (Recommendation 3).

The What Great Looks Like Framework sets 
out the culture Allerdale hopes to create in the 
workplace. Work is also underway to provide 
an Organisational Development Strategy 
which will be designed to communicate and 
embed a clear set of values into the culture at 
Allerdale. The results of this review should be 
incorporated into this strategy to ensure the 
importance of strong ethical behaviours is 
seen as a priority alongside managers leading 
by example. (See recommendation 4)

P
age 31



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

Areas for improvement 

Number Area for Improvement Associated risks Response
1 Management should consider extending 

the declaration of interest process to 
Senior Officers in the interest of 
transparency and openness. 

Risk management, transparency 
and openness, reputational.

Informal arrangements in place, 
Senior Officers already raise any 
conflicts of interest informally in 
meetings. Discussion at SMT will 
identify whether this should be 
formalised in the interests of 
transparency and openness.

2 The Corporate Risk relating to the 
organisational culture should be updated 
to include the assurances and activities 
currently in place.

Risk management Escalate and update 30 April 
2018

Agreed Actions

Number Recommendation Associated risks Priority Response
1 In the interests of transparency the 

gifts and hospitality register should be 
accessible to all officers and 
members, reminders issued regarding 
the process and the content 
published.

Risk management, 
compliance, counter fraud.

Medium Should be accessible for 
everyone. Democratic 
Services Manager 30 April 
2018

2 All employees and members should 
be made aware of their code of 
conduct responsibilities on a regular 
basis. Consideration should be given 
to this being a mandatory attendance 
training session.

Risk management, 
compliance, objectives.

Medium Members are encouraged to 
attend but only training for 
members of regulatory 
committees is mandatory, we 
could consider different ways 
of providing training. 
Democratic Services Officer 
31 July 2018. Employees 
code of conduct will be 

P
age 32



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

incorporated into the e 
learning to be complete 30 
June 2018.

3 Action should be taken to engage 
with employees to understand more 
about the results from the ethics 
survey. This should be incorporated 
into the staff survey follow up 
sessions.

Efficient and effective, 
objectives, risk management.

Low HR Manager - 31 May 2018

4 The importance of ethical values and 
behaviours for everyone at Allerdale 
Borough Council should be 
incorporated into the Organisational 
Development Strategy.

Efficient and effective, 
objectives, risk management, 
counter fraud

Medium Review of the What Great 
Looks Like Behaviours 
Framework is in progress. 
The HR Advisor delivering 
this project will include the 
ethical behaviours. 31 July 
2018.

5 Member Declaration of Pecuniary 
Interest forms should be reviewed to 
ensure the questions are clear and 
easy to understand. The information 
provided should be reviewed by the 
responsible Officer to ensure 
accuracy and consistency.

Efficient and effective, 
objectives, risk management, 
counter fraud

Medium Responsibility for completion 
is on the individual member. 
Democratic Services 
Manager will review the form 
to promote plain language 
and improve data quality. 31 
July 2018.

Guide to the audit assurance opinions
Comprehensive There is a sound system of controls designed to meet objectives, manage risks and controls are consistently 

applied in all the areas reviewed.

Substantial There is a good system of controls and risks are managed. However, there are opportunities for improvement in 
the design or consistency of application that will assist in the achievement of objectives identified as being at risk 
in the areas reviewed.

Limited Key controls exist to help achieve objectives and manage principle risks. However, there are opportunities for 
improvement in the overall control environment which would enhance the design and application of controls, 
thereby assisting the achievement of objectives identified as being at risk in the areas reviewed.

P
age 33



Appendix A Q4 Internal Audit Final Reports

Minimal The absence of basic key controls or the inconsistent application of key controls is so severe that the audit area 
is open to abuse or error. Risks to objectives are not being managed.

Agreed action levels
High There is a control vulnerability that could result in failure to achieve corporate objectives, reputational damage, lead to 

material loss, exposure to serious fraud or failure to meet legal or statutory requirements. This includes material non-
compliance with the Constitution, Financial Regulations or Council policies and procedures. Managers should address 
high priority recommendations urgently to rectify the situation.

Medium The system or procedure lacks adequate control that could result in failure to achieve operational objectives, non-
material loss, or non-compliance with departmental operational or financial procedures. This would also include minor 
non-compliance with Financial Regulations. Although not fundamental to system integrity these risks should be 
addressed promptly as the next priority.

Low To implement this would be good practice to improve or enhance the system and the achievement of objectives. Several 
low risks in combination may give rise to concern.  

P
age 34



66.67% 2

0.00% 0

33.33% 1

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

Q1 How would you rate your overall satisfaction with us?
Answered: 3 Skipped: 0

TOTAL 3

# ANY FURTHER COMMENTS DATE

 There are no responses.  

Good

 Satisfied

Dissatisfied

somewhat
dissatisfied

very
dissatisfied

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Good

 Satisfied

Dissatisfied

somewhat dissatisfied

very dissatisfied

1 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 35



Q2 Please rate our Assurance risk and Audit officer on the following
attributes

Answered: 2 Skipped: 1

Provided
quality service

Was
understandin...

Approachable

Provided an
Independent...

2 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 36



0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

 
2

Very Poor Poor Fair Good Very Good

Communicated
effectively

Professionalism

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 VERY POOR POOR FAIR GOOD VERY GOOD TOTAL

Provided quality service

Was understanding of your challenges and demands

Approachable

Provided an Independent service

Communicated effectively

Professionalism

3 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 37



Q3 How would you rate the below aspects of the audit?
Answered: 2 Skipped: 1

Notice period
given ahead ...

The scope and
objectives o...

Audit ran to
schedule wit...

The draft
report...

4 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 38



0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

100.00%
2

0.00%
0

0.00%
0

 
2

5 4 Good Satisfactory Poor

The final
report was...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 5 4 GOOD SATISFACTORY POOR TOTAL

Notice period given ahead of the audit (the brief issued to heads of
service)

The scope and objectives of the audit reflected the areas you
wished to be reviewed

Audit ran to schedule with minimal disruption

The draft report adequately addressed the key issues/risks to the
service

The final report was clear and concise

5 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 39



100.00% 2

0.00% 0

Q4 Do you feel the Audit has added value to your service?
Answered: 2 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 2

# IF NO, PLEASE PROVIDE FURTHER DETAILS DATE

 There are no responses.  

Yes

No

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

6 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 40



100.00% 2

0.00% 0

Q5 Do you agree or disagree that the Auditor was knowledgeable and
insightful when making recommendations and providing assurance

around key controls?
Answered: 2 Skipped: 1

TOTAL 2

Agree

Disagree

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Agree

Disagree

7 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 41



Q6 We are continually looking for ways to improve the quality and
delivery of our service. What changes would most improve our service?

Answered: 1 Skipped: 2

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Some reports can be to in-depth and can lose members when having it explained. Highlight any
changes, give bullet points and where to find more detailed explanations.

3/28/2018 6:20 PM

8 / 8

Assurance Risk and Audit Service Survey

Page 42



Priority Link Risk Description Service Area Impact Description Impact Likelihood Risk Score Responsibility Measures and Assurance

Measures and
Assurance
Assignment Mitigating Actions planned Mitigation Date

Reported To
and Frequency

Economic Growth Potential risk to the delivery of major
schemes due to reduced levels of public
regeneration funding

Economic Growth Inability to progress major regeneration
schemes resulting in failure to safeguard
or create employment opportunities

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik; Ongoing dialogue wtih relevant funding bodies and stakeholders. Hardy, Nik; 1. Continuation of dialogue with key stakeholders
and funding bodies.
2. Identification of other possible means to
delivery.
3. Applying for Business Rates pilot.
4. Potential private sector funding.
5. LEP growth Deal.
6. Alternative delivery model designed for private
sector investment.

29/06/2018 SMT monthly

Performance Significant unbudgeted expenditure arising
from severe weather conditions.

Corporate Further deterioration of sea defences
and impact on low lying coastal
properties and land.
Landslips occuring following severe
weather
Cost of business disruption e.g. NNDR
collection
Increase cost of business as usual
services and customers as resource is
used to support

4 4 16 Nicholson,
Catherine;

Extent of damage identified and external funding opportunities being
explored
Report produced identifying issues and options and circulated to Director
Following Storm Desmond and flooding in December 2015 the Bellwin
scheme has been activated for Cumbria. This scheme will provide additional
financial support associated with response works undertaken between the
start of the incident and up to 1 month after the end of the official response
stage.
A finance sub-group with members from all Cumbrian Authorities has been
set up in response to recent storms and flooding, this allows the sharing of
knowledge and best practice. This group will also be responsible for
identifying additional funding for the recovery phase (works required to
land/property, loss of income from taxation and business interruption).
Where works are required to be undertaken, these are recorded and costs
estimated to ensure that financing can be identified, either from external
sources identified by the finance sub-group or from Allerdale BC's budget
and internal resources.

Bellwin now submitted and awaiting settlment.  no queries to date.
Major incident budget created for 16/17

Nicholson,
Catherine;

Funding opportunities to support the
repair/replacement of damaged sea defences still
being explored. Awaiting confirmation from
Environment Agency.  STILL OUTSTANDING

Action has been taken to address highest risk
area (Well Lane, Maryport). Topographic survey
and initial appraisal have been undertaken.
Inspection has revealed further structural
inspections will be required and additional works
will be required additional to the original
anticipated costs. Consultants are acting in
connection with the identified additional works.

Provision for this additional cost is being made in
2016/17 budget.
UPDATE MAY 17:  Well Lane now complete.  No
further work required at this stage.  Possible
retentions for 6-12 month period.

Finance Sub-group set up (following Storm
Desmond) to idenitfy additional funding for
recovery phase - NOW DISBANDED

01/09/2017 SMT monthly

Performance Inability to deliver the council plan due to
the consequences of Brexit

Corporate strategic priorities are not met
improvements are not made
lives in allerdale are not improved
cannot deliver value for money
reduced growth

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik; Scenario planning session completed with Assurance, Risk and Audit
Manager.
Staff briefing sessons held on 12th and 15th July 2016
 and a further session held in August 2017

Frost,
Ian;Hardy, Nik;

Key Officers must remain part of discussions with
stakeholders
The situation will be monitored through the
creation of the Strategy, Policy and Performance
team - regular topic specific meetings have/ are
being held
Information updates from professional bodies
should be shared with SMT on a regular basis
Identify strategy setting groups and ensure we are
part of these discussions.
Involve more people in the information updates.

09/03/2018 Monthly at SMT

Performance Failure to align adequate people resources
to council strategic priorities.

OD and
Transformation

Strategic Priorities and associated
outcomes are not delivered
Transformation programme is not
delivered.
Services fail to grow or be as efficient as
required.

3 3 9 Seekings,
Andrew;

Current performance management framework ensures that key issues and
challenges facing the Council drives Council Plan and service plan priorities.
Project approach is taken to delivering Council Plan and regular monitoring
of budgets and performance is in place.
Deployment of appropraite people resources is considered as part of
programme/project set up
New performance/behaviours framework in place

Seekings,
Andrew;

•	Review OD strategy
Resource allocation considered as part of project
management
•	Review WGLL with managers group.
•	Performance against strategic priorities monitor
ed on a regular basis at SMT.

30/09/2018 SMT monthly
Executive
quarterly

Strengthening our
economy

Information is not managed in line with
policy, procedure and regulatory
requirements.  Failure to deliver the
requirements of the Data Protection
Regulations.

OD and
Transformation

1. Breach of GDPR & financial
implications. 2. Reputation, trust &
confidence. 3. Fines. 4. Commercial
sensitive information. 5. Damage to
relationship with partners we work with
possibly won't work with us again. 6.
Potential loss of staff through dismissal.
7. ICO investigation. 8. Loss/misuse of
personal data. 9. Loss of business time.
10. Could be put into special measures.
11. Substantial fine 12. Potential fraud.

4 3 12 Hardy, Nik; 1. GDPR framework and internal policies. 2. Process & procedures. 3.
Review what we have and why we hold it. 4. Audit process. 5. Retention
policy. 6. ICT policies. 7. Data sharing protocol. 8. Project group established.

Hardy, Nik; Project Running:
1. Education/training. 2. Awareness. 3. Reviews.
4. Monitoring. 5. E-Learning. 6. Team meetings.
7. Regular updates. 8. Procedures in place to
ensure policies adhered to. 9. Review what we
hold. 10. Learn from others. 11. Reminders for
staff about managing data. 12. Managers
consistency. 13. Highlighting consequences (to
staff and also those whose data is stolen etc). 14.
Campaign. 15. Repetative testing. 16.
Acknowledgement of understanding.

31/05/2018 SMT Monthly
Programme
Board

Strengthening our
economy

Failure to engage community in the
planning process.

Development Services Delays and costs associated with
objections and challenges to planning
applications and site allocations. Impact
on delivery of the Council's growth
ambitons for housing and employment
land. Adverse impact on the Council's
reputation. Impact on Council Tax,
NNDR and New Homes Bonus received.

3 3 9 Kerrigan, Kevin; Improved community consultation and engagement.
Member engagement in development of Local Plan through Planning Policy
Working Group.
Training for Development Panel members - including applications review
workshops.
Appropriate level of detail in Development Panel reports.
Regular planning case mangement meetings
Wording of planning application correspondence reviewed.
Appeal decision reviews circulated to members.
Moved to 4 week cycle for Development Panel with morning sessions
focussed on member training, application review workshops and the
introduction of pre-application engagement with developers on major
schemes.

Kerrigan, Kevin; Increased engagement with Town and Parish
Council's to assist in explaining the planning
system and the reasons for decisions.
1. Community email/newsletter that people sign
up to to get more information. 2. publicise the
decision making process/grounds for objectives.
3. more social media communication. 4. give
public facing staff a route to feedback from
conversations within the community - concepts to
be developed following appointment to new post
of Planning Implementation Manager.

30/03/2018 SMT monthly

P
age 43



Sustainable business Failure to establish cost effective waste
and recycling, street cleansing and
grounds maintenance services in
Allerdale, delivering to the needs of the
local community

Community Services The contracting arrangements currently
in place providing for waste and
recycling (including recycling
reprocessing), street cleansing and
grounds maintenance terminate on 31
March 2019. A new business delivery
model will need to be commissioned to
enable these key services to be
delivered with an affordability saving of
£1m from the current cost. Failure to
commission these services, on time and
cost, will have a significant negative
impact on the business of the Council.

4 4 16 Holmes,
Charles;

The delivery model selected is the procurement of a performance based
services contracting arrangement. A competitive dialogue process has been
selected which enables detailed dialogue with companies tendering for the
services and provides an opportunity to achieve the affordability criteria and
the service delivery requirements

Costs (legal, technical and financial) of procurement have been identified
and resources allocated with external support procured through the BLOOM
framework.

The project management arrangements include a detailed risk register
outlining the individual project risks associated with the delivery of the
project. These are reviewed weekly at the Project Team Meetings and
Fortnightly at the Project Board meetings.

Banks, Neil; Competitive Dialogue will be undertaken prior to
the submission of refined and then detailed
solutions. This phase will further develop the
services to be delivered through the services
agreement; the projected contract cost through
the procing schedule and the contractor
performance through the performance
management framework.

08/10/2018 Risk reported to
weekly
community
services
business
delivery model
project group
and monthly
meetings of the
project board.

Sustainable business Failure to continue providing value for
money for expenditure

OD and
Transformation

Inability to fulfil statutory obligations.
Cease discretionary services. Cannot
succeed as a council.  Unable to achieve
plans, loss of key staff and or services,
further use of reserves. Waste due to
inefficient processes.

4 3 12 Frost, Ian; 5 Year sustainability plan agreed by Executive.  Reserves above minimum
level. Star Chamber approach adopted to improve accountability and
responsibility for budget management. Tailor made financial workshops for
budget holders quarterly.  Budget timetable and reporting managed
effectively. Forecasting out puts examined and challenged at SMT regularly.
Increasing demand for monthly performance indicator information at SMT
monthly to drive efficiency and effectiveness. Sector advisors – treasury
guidance. Reducing spend programme – monitored.
The Commercial and Commissioning Boards should drive cost and time
performance information relating to value for money and productivity. This
should include detailed business cases and options appraisals to support
informed decision making.
Council plan projects and new areas of business activity should be subject to
a structured options appraisal using the programme office methodology to
encourage innovation and the consideration of alternative business and
delivery models. Projects should include clear measurable, agreed outputs to
demonstrate the value added by the expenditure.     Risk information in the
Corporate Risks and Issues Log should be refreshed on an ongoing basis as
changes occur to ensure it reflects current risk management activities. A risk
evaluation of the high risks (red) should be completed by the Senior
Management Team monthly.
Minimum reserve position and self sufficiency targets monitored and
reviewed by S151 Officer on risk basis

Frost, Ian; SMT are developing an Organisational
Development Plan to support the drive for
efficiency and growth. Value for Money will be a
key driver for these plans. 1. Transformation
Board manages the budget. 2. In service review.
3. Improvement Workshops - SMT to pilot. 4.
Elaine to design - commisioning/procurement
training.

01/09/2017 SMT monthly
Executive
quarterly

Sustainable business Business continuity plans do not meet
business needs

Corporate The Council does not comply with its
duties as a Category 1 Responder under
CCA. Priority services are not
maintained,. Resulting in bad publicity
and loss of confidence in management,
delayed income collection, increased
unbudgeted expenditure costs.

4 3 12 Nicholson,
Catherine;

16/02/2017 – Cloud based Business continuity software has been
implemented, accessible from any internet capable device, relevant staff
have received training on its use. Departmental plans combined into central
Business Continuity plan containing sections for dealing with Initial Incident
actions, Communications, Recovery and Restoration phases, together with
managing impact on the Council. Solway House agreed as alternative
location for DDR set up site, control centre and priority services. ICT
infrastructure and data links in place to allow restoration of required servers
and access to data backups located at Carlisle. Telephony system
transferred to BT OnePhone fully mobile based system removing
requirement for server access via Allerdale House. Contact Centre
transferred to a ‘cloud’ based solution allowing access via any internet
capable device, regardless of location. Property Services have provided a
plan identifying space within building for incident response team and priority
services.  Business Interruption insurance in place and Insurance cover in
respect of council assets, reinstatement of data, additional increased cost of
working.
Business interruption insurance relating to specified supplier investigated
and amendments to cover made.
Business recovery plan template has been updated to capture additional
information about resource requirements for priority services, details of staff
to be relocated to Solway House and other potential locations and has been
circulated to Heads of Service

Nicholson,
Catherine;

1.  Apply likely costings for budget
2.  Head of Service table top exercise held on
14/02/17 supervised by Egton consultant. Number
of actions raised to amend and update plan.
Further excercise to be completed
3. Rolling program of full Departmental exercises
4. Update Audit Committee
5. Learn lessons from partner organisations

31/12/2017 SMT monthly
Executive
quarterly

Sustainable business Move to 100% retention of business rates -
and the delay from 2019/20 to 2020/21 -
depending on new parliament

Corporate Impact on the medium term financial
plan.
Potential loss of growth depending on re-
sets
Difficulty in planning for growth and
retaining income

3 4 12 Nicholson,
Catherine;

Whole scheme has now been delayed due to the snap general election.
Awaiting Queens Speech - new legislation

Continued membership of Cumbria NNDR group
LG futures events for updates
Consultations and DCLG statements
Pilot potential will be reported to Executive
Council in January 2018.

NOT awarded PILOT - but new Cumbria Wide
pool agreed for 2018/19

75% retention confirmed as part of local
government settlement

09/05/2017 SMT monthly

Sustainable business Failure to manage and maintain a secure
information systems network

Corporate Service outage, loss of data, business
disruption, reduced trust from
stakeholders, cyber crime, information
lost or stolen, regulatory fines, regulatory
investigation, failure to provide customer
service, loss of income.

4 3 12 Wood, Paul; Independent penetration testing completed annually by a third party to
identify and report vulnerabilities in the system. Cloud based systems are in
place for office 365, my allerdale, telephony. Daily off site back ups. Regular
back up reliability testing. Revised ICT policys to improve end user
awareness. Public Services Network compliance gained March 2017.
Horizon scanning and lessons learnt from events.

Hollins,
Keith;#536

1. Gradually move all systems to cloud based
products.
2. Implementation of Cloud based strategy
3. Regular scheduled back up testing
4. Awareness and education of all end users -
(ICT business partner role) by 31/3/18

22/09/2018 SMT Monthly

P
age 44



Sustainable business Business rates collected fall below
baseline funding

Corporate Less cash income and more reliance on
reserves. Unable to balance budget.
Further service cuts.

3 3 9 Nicholson,
Catherine;

In house Revs and Bens team monitor collection rates and report back to
Head of Finance to provide early warning. Existing award of business rate
reliefs policy in place but based on system before localisation of NNDR.
Application to pool business rates has been accepted again for 2016/17.
Cumbria wide group established with Cumbria County Council taking the
lead role on the pool with specialist advice.
Regular meetings are held between all members of the pool to discuss the
business rates income projections and to highlight any significant issues that
are relevant to the pool and/or individual authorities.
Monitoring currently in place is reviewed and changes/enhancements are
discussed between relevant parties and where necessary actioned.
The Allerdale sub-group has been set up and has now had a number of
meetings to discuss potential growth, decline and any other relevant topics,
members include revenues, planning, finance, economic growth and
membership is reviewed to make sure it remains fit for purpose.

Nicholson,
Catherine;

 1.  Working with Revs and Bens Shared Service
to develop more enhanced monitoring  eg top 20
rates payers, those in appeal etc.
 2.  Update of discretionary rate reflief planned
3. Set up Buiness Rates Working Group

01/09/2017 SMT monthly
Executive
quarterly
Finance sub
group

Tackling inequality Increased number of families in poverty Corporate Quality of life reduced, decreased
customer satisfaction, reduced life
expectancy.

3 3 9 Seekings,
Andrew;

1. Development and delivery of the Tackling Poverty Strategy.

2. Local poverty statistics monitored annually through the key issues paper

Seekings,
Andrew;

1. Set up Delivery Board to oversee delivery by
30/4/18.
2. Develop delivery plan for the Tackling Poverty
Strategy Action Plan 2018-20 by 30/6/18.
3. Deliver Tackling Poverty Strategy Action Plan
Delivery Plan by March 2020.
4. Further develop activity to ensure that tackling
inequality and poverty is considered across the
organisation in business planning and decision
making through awareness raising and develop
better use of impact assessments by Sept 2018.
5. Review delivery through quarterly Delivery
Board.

30/03/2020 SMT monthly

P
age 45



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 46



Allerdale Borough Council

Audit Committee – 7 June 2018

Assurance, Risk and Audit Plan and Strategy 2018/19

The Reason for the Decision To set out how we intend to deliver an Internal 
Audit Service in line with the Public Sector 
Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS) 1 April 2017.

Summary of options considered To obtain agreement of the Assurance Risk and 
Audit Charter to the Assurance Risk and Audit 
Resource Plan for the work to be carried out 
2018/19.

Recommendations To approve the Assurance Risk and Audit 
Resource Plan and Strategy 2018/19.

Financial /  Resource Implications No additional resource required to deliver this.

Legal / Governance Implications This Strategy has been completed in line with the 
statutory requirements and professional guidance 
recommendations.

Community Safety Implications None specific to this matter.

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

This contributes to the effectiveness of the 
Assurance Risk and Audit Team in Enterprise-
wide Risk Management.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

Considered – not required.

Wards Affected None specifically

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

This will contribute to the achievement of all 
council plan priority areas.

Is this a Key Decision No

Portfolio Holder Joan Ellis

Lead Officer Emma Thompson
Assurance Risk and Audit Manager
(01900) 70298emma.thompson@allerdale.gov.uk

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



Report Implications 

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial Y Employment (internal) N

Legal Y Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

1.0 Introduction 

1.1     The Audit Committee approved the Assurance Risk and Audit (ARA) Strategy 
on 17 February 2017, this strategy set out how the ARA Manager would 
develop the resource plan going forward. There have been no significant 
changes to the methodology for developing the Audit Plan, this has simply 
been refreshed to include the current priorities. (See appendix a).

 
 1.2 The PSIAs 2010 Planning requires:

The ‘Chief Audit Executive’ must establish risk-based plans to determine the 
priorities of the internal audit activity, consistent with the organisation’s goals.

Interpretation:
To develop the risk-based plan, the Chief Audit Executive (Assurance Risk 
and Audit Manager) consults with senior management and the board and 
obtains an understanding of the organisation’s strategies, key business 
objectives, associated risks and risk management processes. The Chief Audit 
Executive must review and adjust the plan, as necessary, in response to 
changes in the organisation’s business, risks, operations, programmes, 
systems, and controls.

          Public sector requirement
The risk-based plan must take into account the requirement to produce an 
annual internal audit opinion and the assurance framework. It must 
incorporate or be linked to a strategic or high-level statement of how the 
internal audit service will be delivered and developed in accordance with the 
internal audit charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and 
priorities

1.3 The resource plan (appendix b presented for your approval is based on the 
Assurance Risk and Audit Strategy 2018/19 and incorporates the 
requirements of the PSIAs and the Audit and Accounts and Audit (England) 
Regulations 2015 (amended), the Accounts and Audit (Wales) regulations 
2005, section 95 of the Local Government (Scotland) Act 1973 and the 
Amendment to the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations 
(Northern Ireland) 2006.

1.4 The allocation of days to each area has been taken on a risk based approach 
based on the total income and expenditure for each area, corporate insight of 

Page 48



risks and issues arising in these areas, the nature and number of corporate 
risks and the of corporate priorities assigned for delivery in 2018/19. 

1.5 The audit reviews have been allocated lead auditors within the plan based on 
their mix of knowledge, skills and competencies, all audit reviews are 
supervised by the ARA Manager, and her work is reviewed by the ARA 
Officer.

Audit Area Lead Auditor Days Allocated
Financial Services ARA Officer 25
Revenues and Benefits ARA Assistant 15
Risk Management ARA Officer 5
ICT ARA Manager / Out 

Sourced ICT Audit
3

Culture and Ethics follow 
up and questionnaire

ARA Manager 3

Car Parking Income ARA Assistant 10
Corporate Credit Cards ARA Assistant 5
Health and Safety ARA Officer 10
Governance Service ARA Officer 10
Procurement ARA Officer 15
Contract Management ARA Officer 15
AONB ARA Assistant 5
Job Evaluation ARA Officer 5
Housing and Health ARA Assistant 15

1.6 The plan includes a high level overview of the additional assurance and 
consulting activities undertaken by the team, these estimated budgets have 
been devised using previous performance information, corporate insight into 
activities going forward along with resource for investigations, advice and 
fraud work.

2.0      Finance/Resource Implications

2.1     The plan will be based on the Full Time Equivalent resource of the Assurance, 
Risk and Audit Team and an additional 10 bought in days for ICT Audit work.

3.0     Legal Implications and Risks

3.1      As stated in 1.2 and in accordance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS).

4.0    Recommendations

4.1 To approve the Assurance Risk and Audit Resource Plan and Strategy 
2018/19.

Emma Thompson
Assurance Risk and Audit Manager

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



Assurance, Risk and Audit 
Strategic Plan 2018/19

Delivering independent assurance, advice and 
consulting services to Allerdale Borough Council to 

support the achievement of objectives and the delivery 
and coordination of organisational integrated assurance.

Delivering Value Differently

“Allerdale – a great place to live, work and visit”

Page 51



1      Introduction

1.1    During 2015/16 the Council improved the risk management framework by embedding and 
committing to an Integrated Assurance Strategy, based on the three lines of defence model, 
incorporating a risk framework that is in line with risk management best practice. The Council 
now has a maintained Risks and Issues Log for corporate risks to the achievement of the 
Council’s objectives outlined in the Councils Commitment to Local Communities 2015-19. The 
Council produces a Business Plan, which will outline what all services wish to achieve in the 
current financial year, this will assist with the prioritisation of Assurance activities going forward.

1.2    This strategy must demonstrate the balance between the corporate need for internal audit 
advice, guidance and assurance, and the statutory responsibilities of the Account and Audit 
Regulations 2015, the standards and expectations of the Public Sector Internal Auditing 
Standards (PSIASs), the Constitution, external stakeholders and the Audit Committee. The 
Delivering Good Governance Framework 2016 also defines the follow up of agreed actions and 
the regular audit of risk management, performance and data quality as some of the criteria of 
good governance. 

  1.3   To ensure efficiency and effectiveness the majority of Assurance, Risk and Audit work should be 
providing advice and guidance within the first line of defence, in a proactive role looking forward 
rather than a reactive role looking back on past events, whilst maintaining the necessary 
independence and objectivity. The Assurance, Risk and Audit Team will continue to have an 
active role on the Procurement Commissioning and Project Board (PCPB) providing ongoing 
assurances over the risk management, governance and control activities throughout the project 
lifecycle from business case to post implementation review. Improving fraud awareness is a 
continuing priority and this has been specifically detailed as a priority within this year’s plan. The 
section will continue to be the main point of contact for the National Fraud Initiative and 
coordinate these activities on an ongoing basis.

1.4 The role of the team to support Enterprise Wide Risk Management best practice will continue in 
the form of facilitating six monthly risk workshops with the Senior Management Team (SMT) and 
Third Tier Managers. We meet the individual members of SMT every six months to go through 
their risk profile and provide them with any support they need with the risk management process 
and to facilitate any risk profiling workshops when new risks emerge.

2       What is Risk based Internal Auditing? 

2.1    The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors defines risk based internal auditing (RBIA) as a 
methodology that links internal auditing to an organisation's overall risk management 
framework. RBIA allows internal audit activity to provide assurance to the Audit Committee and 
senior management that risk management processes are managing risks effectively, in relation 
to the stated risk appetite. RBIA seeks at every stage to reinforce the responsibilities of 
management, the Executive and Audit Committee for managing risk and recommend 
enhancements to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of these processes.

Page 52



2.2 Applying the principles of risk based internal auditing.

3 Resource

3.1   The approach for the plan this year has been developed by the team to ensure the resource is 
aligned to the Business Plan 2018/19, where the time spent will add most value to the 
achievement of organisational goals. This strategy will detail how the annual plan will be 
delivered in accordance with the Assurance Risk and Audit Charter and the organisations 
objectives and priorities. The risk based plan will include sufficient work to produce an annual 
opinion on the adequacy of the assurance framework to support the Annual Governance 
Statement. 

3.2   The plan will be based on the Full Time Equivalent resource of the Assurance, Risk and Audit 
Team with specialist ICT bought in via the joint procurement with the Lancashire and District 
Audit Group members. The plan will be broken down into all areas of work, to provide a guide to 
internal audit activity and apply the elements of Performance Standard 2000, which states the 
risk based plan must incorporate or be linked to a strategic or high-level statement of how the 
service will be delivered and how it links to the organisational objectives and priorities. We will 
endeavour to allocate specific reviews to team members at the earliest opportunity. To further 
enhance this plan where possible the PSIASs link will be made against the relevant activities.

4      Audit Plan

4.1 Moving forward and in line with the Planning Performance Standard 2010 the plan will be 
prioritised in relation to the risk management activities and organisational objectives for each 
area of the Council. For 2018/19 these will be defined by the Council in a number of ways:

 The 2018/19 budget

Page 53



 The Business Plan 18/19 – key projects to be delivered which directly link with the 
strategic objectives of the Council set out in the Council Plan 2015-19

 The Corporate Risks and Issues log

 Service Risk Registers

 Annual Governance Statement significant issues

 Areas of risk arising from previous reviews

 Outcomes from annual risk meetings with the Senior Management Team

 Organisational insight gained from corporate support work

4.2   This information will be used to create an Audit plan focused on adding maximum value to the 
biggest priorities at Allerdale, this focus will drive efficiency and effectiveness in project delivery 
and ensure the benefits from improvements are experienced throughout the business. The plan 
of reviews will be made up of two parts, risk based statutory assurance reviews and risk based 
assurance reviews.

5      Statutory Audit and Assurance Reviews

5.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 make the ‘body’ (Council) responsible for 
‘maintaining an adequate and effective internal audit’ service. The internal audit service must 
complete sufficient work to provide an opinion over the adequacy of the system of internal 
control for the Council’s financial systems. 

5.2    A risk based approach will be followed for 2018/19. The risk profile and assurances in place for 
Financial Services and Revenues and Benefits will be used to scope each review following the 
methodology in the table below.

 Financial Services

 Revenues and Benefits

The PSIAS also highlight the following areas as key areas for review:

ICT - The internal audit activity must assess whether the information technology governance of 
the organisation supports the organisation’s strategies and objectives.

Risk Management - The internal audit activity must evaluate the effectiveness and contribute to 
the improvement of risk management processes.

Ethic and Cultures - The internal audit activity must evaluate the design, implementation and 
effectiveness of the organisation’s ethics-related objectives, programmes and activities. An 
annual survey will be completed along with a follow up of agreed actions from the 17/18 review.

Page 54



Methodology for Planning the Scope of 
Statutory Reviews

Assurance and Risk Rationale

Follow up of agreed actions and or actions 
from other assurance providers.

Directing resource to areas highlighted as high 
risk or limited assurance

Supporting the team with the update of the 
assurance map for the entire Service

Identify where assurances exist, where 
opportunities for improvement can be realised 
and promotes management ownership of risk 
management and assurance.

Meetings with Heads of Service and key 
Officers to establish the key operational 
priorities and issues for this year.

Consideration of key business priorities as 
defined by stakeholders

Review of the Corporate Risks and Issues Log 
and Service Risk Assessments 

To validate and prioritise the scope of work to 
add value and improve governance, risk 
management and control processes. 

Outline an independent testing plan with input 
from all team members to ensure all aspects of 
corporate knowledge and experience is 
included.

To validate the activities defined by the service 
as providing assurance and managing key 
risks as part of the service assurance map and 
risk registers. To direct resource to the highest 
risks and main objectives for the service.

Deliver comprehensive results together where 
possible– one report for Financial Services 
and one for Revenues and Benefits.

Improves productivity with more efficient and 
effective delivery of services, more time 
providing assurance less time report writing. 
Aligning audit delivery with service delivery 
making improvements more practicable for 
implementation – all in one place approach.

6    Risk Based Assurance Reviews 

6.1   We want to support every area of the business by creating a plan where there is time for 
independent assurance over every area of operation every two years and of course additional 
time allocated of advice and contingency reviews as they arise.

6.2   Our aim is to add value by providing assurance for risk management, internal control and 
governance to EVERY area of the business at least every two years and really improve our 
business partnering role, allocating days proportionally based on the following factors.

 Number of Business Plan projects

 Budget

 Number and Scoring of Corporate Risks and Issues

 Service Risks 

 AGS Significant Issues / areas for improvement

 Corporate knowledge and information shared in relation to the challenges and 
opportunities in the areas based on, interviews with Head of Service, and membership in 
the following groups; 

Page 55



- Procurement Commissioning and Projects

- Employee Engagement Group 

- Governance Group 

- Policy Group

6.3 Audit Reviews will also be completed for areas identified in the risk assessment approach 
defined in Section Four above. The scope of work will be defined in real time when the area 
appears next in the ARA work schedule. ARA resource will focus on the highest risks and the 
main objectives the service intend to deliver to support the achievement of the Business Plan 
18/19 and ultimately the Council plan 2015-19.  The scope of work will be defined and agreed 
by the team collectively to ensure all information, knowledge and experience is included in the 
risk assessment. This approach will be a development opportunity for the whole team and 
support succession planning by sharing knowledge and experience.

6.4     To maintain independence work will be planned and allocated to the appropriate team member 
to ensure the standards are met and assurance is not impaired, such as rotating staff at least 
every three years and ensuring where possible no reviews are completed by officers who have 
had previous responsibilities in the service area.

7 Approval and Communication

7.1     This has been developed to ensure the council receives maximum benefit from the limited 
Internal Audit resource available. We endeavour to move with the changing nature of Local 
Government challenges and ensure we can make a direct impact on the delivery of council 
priorities.  

7.2     The Audit Committee approves these plans in line with the Assurance Risk and Audit Charter 
and Terms of Reference. Plans are communicated and consulted with the Senior Management 
Team prior to approval. This strategy allows for flexibility in approach to respond to business 
needs, changes in the operating environment and corporate governance support. The service 
will continue to encourage advice and guidance support at the earliest opportunity to ensure 
technical advice is provided at the right time to strengthen the decision making process. 

Please phone (01XXX XXXXXX) if you would like a copy of this document in a different format

Page 56



Assurance Risk and Audit Plan 18/19
Establishment Value Added to Corporate Priorities
Full time  (1 post for the full year) 261.00
Full time  (1 post for the full year) 261.00
0.6081FTE 159.00
ICT Audit - Outsourced 10.00
Total Days 691.00
Less Annual/Statutory 99.50

591.50
Less
non chargeable time 45.00
Training/Exam Leave 30.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Sickness 10.00
Total Non Chargeable Days 85.00

Chargeable Days 506.50
Use of chargeable days
HR Management 40.00 All Priorities
Audit Days available 466.50

Statutory Assurance Reviews Days

Finance 25 Creating a Sustainable Business
Revenues and Benefits 15 Tackling inequality / Efficiency
ICT 11 Growth
Culture and Ethics 3 All Priorities

Risk Management 5 All Priorities
Car Parking Income 10.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Work Brought Forward (17/18 plan) 35.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Corporate Support, including management,
team meetings,appraisals, AGS and
corporate groups 130.00 All Priorities
Decision Making support (delegated
decisions, exec, council) 12.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Democratic Representation & Management 15.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Projects 15.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Peer Review 5.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Assurance and Risk support 10.00 Growth and Efficiency
Fraud including NFI and awareness 9.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Advice 10.00 All priorities
Follow up 15.00 All priorities
Investigations 10.00 All priorities

Assurance reviews - Risk Based Auditing

Health and Safety 10.00
Creating a Sustainable Business /
Improving Health and Wellbeing

Corporate Credit Cards 5.00 Efficient and Effective Council

Procurement 15.00
Efficient and Effective Council /
Creating a Sustainable Business

Contract Management 15.00
Efficient and Effective Council /
Creating a Sustainable Business

Governance 10.00 Creating a Sustainable Business

AONB 5.00
Creating a Sustainable Business /
Enhancing our Towns

Job Evaluation 5.00 Efficient and Effective Council

Housing and Health 15.00
Enhancing our Towns / Improving
Health and Well being

GDPR - compliance support 5.00
Efficient and Effective Council /
Creating a Sustainable Business

credit union 10.00 Tackling inequality
contingency 6.00
Risk facilitation - risk management
support/facilitation 15.00

Efficient and Effective Council /
Creating a Sustainable Business

Member training and support 5.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
Commercial opportunities, Procurement and
Commissioning Board (Advice and
assistance) 5.00 Creating a Sustainable Business
volunteer days 5.50 Improving Health and Wellbeing
Total Chargeable Days 466.50
chargeable time target % 78.87%

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Allerdale Borough Council

Audit Committee – 7 June 2018

Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

The Reason for the Decision This report sets out the Council’s draft Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) for 2017/18 which 
is necessary to meet the requirements of the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 (“The 
Regulations”).

Summary of options considered The options considered are detailed in the report.

Recommendations That the Committee approves the draft 2017/18 
Annual Governance Statement as set out in 
Appendix 1 of the report.

Financial /  Resource Implications There are no financial/resource implications 
directly arising from this report.

Legal / Governance Implications In accordance with the Accounts and Audit
Regulations 2015, the Annual Governance
Statement should be approved by members of 
the Council meeting as a whole, or by a 
committee, at the same time as the statement of 
accounts is approved.

Community Safety Implications There are no Community Safety Implications 
directly arising from this report.

Health and Safety and Risk 
Management Implications

The Authority is required to prepare and publish 
an Annual Governance Statement to meet the 
statutory requirements set out in the Accounts 
and Audit Regulations 2015. Failure to do so 
could result in non-compliance of the 
requirements of the Regulations.

Equality Duty considered / Impact 
Assessment completed

The Equality Duty has been considered.

Wards Affected All

The contribution this decision would 
make to the Council’s priorities

The Annual Governance Statement minimises the 
risk that the Council’s priorities will not be 
achieved.

Is this a Key Decision No

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



Portfolio Holder Councillor Joan Ellis, Governance and People 
Resources Portfolio Holder.

Lead Officer Brendan Carlin
Acting Head of Governance and Monitoring 
Officer
01900 702706
brendan.carlin@allerdale.gov.uk

Report Implications

Community Safety N Employment (external to the Council) N

Financial N Employment (internal) Y

Legal Y Partnership N

Social Inclusion N Asset Management N

Equality Duty N Health and Safety N

Background papers: Local Code of Corporate Governance
Annual Governance Statement Evidence – 17/18 (based on the core principles of the 
CIPFA/SoLACE Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framework 
2016)

1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Allerdale Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is 
conducted in accordance with the law, proper standards, good governance 
and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. In 
discharging this overall responsibility, the Council has to ensure that it has 
sound systems of internal control, risk management and good governance 
arrangements in place to facilitate the exercise of its duties. Additionally, the 
Council is required to continuously review these arrangements and to ensure 
that the arrangements are considered by an appropriate body of the Council 
annually. This report sets out the governance arrangements and the system 
of internal control which operated during 2017/18 and up to the date of 
approval of the financial statements.

1.2 The Regulations require the Annual Governance Statement should be 
approved at a meeting of the Authority or Delegated Committee. Following 
approval, the Annual Governance Statement should be signed by the leading 
member (or equivalent) and Chief Executive (or equivalent) on behalf of the 
Authority. 

Page 60



1.3 The purpose of the Annual Governance Statement is to provide reassurance 
that the provisions of the Local Code of Corporate Governance have been 
complied with. It also draws together any significant governance issues that 
need to be addressed over the next year. 

1.4 The Council has established governance arrangements which are consistent 
with the seven principles of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) and Society of Local Authority Chief Executives 
(SOLACE) Framework - Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. It 
has adopted a Local Code of Corporate Governance which is publicised on 
the Council website. 

2.0 The Process

2.1 There is a strong correlation between effective governance and effective 
service delivery. The purpose of the AGS process is to provide a continuous 
review of the organisation’s governance arrangements so as to give 
assurance on the effectiveness of the process and/or to address identified 
weaknesses, supporting the continuous improvement of the authority. This 
report and appendix are the result of that review.

2.2 In compiling the Annual Governance Statement a shared approach was 
adopted, involving the Director, Heads of Service (including the Section 151 
Officer and the Monitoring Officer), the Assurance Risk and Audit Manager 
and Chief Executive (also as Head of Paid Service). The Corporate 
Governance Group has the responsibility of collecting evidence for, and the 
drafting of the Annual Governance Statement. Additionally, the statement 
would be required to be certified by signatories of the Leader of the Council 
and the Head of Paid Service, after approval by the Audit Committee.

2.3 Once finalised, the AGS will be published on the Council’s website, along with 
the statement of accounts, for members of the public, elected members, 
officers and other stakeholders to view.

2.4 A review of governance arrangements in place for 2017/18 has been 
informed by the work of internal Assurance, Risk and Audit and Senior 
Managers. The sources of assurance include:

• Assurance Statements completed by Heads of Service, reflecting upon the 
application and governance processes and adequacy of controls within their 
areas of responsibility
• Internal Assurance Risk and Audit, through the annual and interim reports.
• Section 151 Officers and Monitoring Officer in meeting statutory 
responsibilities.
• The review of the Local Code of Corporate Governance

2.5 In order that members may discharge their duties, the Committee has 
received reports, information and training throughout the period under review.

Page 61



Outcome of the Process

2.6 The process confirms that the Council has sound systems of internal control 
and good governance arrangements in place. There are no significant 
governance issues identified in the draft Annual Governance Statement 
2017/18.

3.0 Finance/Resource Implications

3.1 Through developing a robust assurance framework, the Council’s financial 
controls will continue to be improved.

4.0 Legal Implications and Risks

4.1 No additional legal implication beyond the Council’s duty to comply with the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 in regard to the AGS process.

4.2 The Council is required to produce an Annual Governance Statement to 
demonstrate that it has effective internal controls and sound governance 
arrangements in place throughout the financial year. There is a risk that failure 
to produce the Annual Governance Statement in accordance with statutory 
requirements would have negative consequences for the Council. The 
Statement accompanying this report meets statutory requirements and was 
produced in compliance with proper practices, giving regard to relevant 
professional guidance; hence the relevant risk is effectively being managed.

4.3 Having a well-defined assurance framework reduces the risk of any 
weaknesses arising undermining the Council’s governance.

5.0 Recommendations

5.1 That the Committee approves the draft 2017/18 Annual Governance 
Statement as set out in Appendix 1 of the report.

6.0 Conclusion

6.1 The draft Annual Governance Statement (AGS) was prepared in accordance 
with relevant professional guidance. It demonstrates that the Council had 
sound governance arrangements in place during the municipal year 2017/18 
and in the period leading up to the preparation of the AGS and the Council’s 
Accounts. 

Brendan Carlin
Acting Head of Governance and Monitoring Officer

Page 62



Allerdale Borough Council

Annual Governance Statement 2017/18

1. Introduction - Scope of Responsibility

1.1 Allerdale Borough Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and 
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used 
economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the 
Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure continuous 
improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a 
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

1.2 The Council has approved and adopted a local code of corporate governance, 
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government (2016). This local code is subject to 
regular review and updating.

1.3 The 2016 CIPFA/SOLACE Framework requires local authorities to be 
responsible for ensuring that:

 their business is conducted in accordance with all relevant laws and 
regulations;

 public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for;
 resources are used economically, efficiently and effectively to 

achieve agreed priorities which benefit local people.

1.4 The 2016 Framework also expects that local authorities will put in place proper 
arrangements for the governance of their affairs and facilitate the effective 
exercise of their functions, which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk.

1.5 This statement explains how the Council has complied with the code and also 
meets the requirements of Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, 
regulation 6(1)(b), which requires all relevant authorities to prepare an annual 
governance statement.

2. The Purpose of the Governance Framework 
2.1 The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and 

values by which the Council is directed and controlled and its activities through 
which it accounts to, engages with and leads its communities. It enables the 
Council to monitor the achievement of its priorities and to consider whether 
those priorities have led to the delivery of appropriate services and value for 
money.

Page 63



2.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and prioritise the 
risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to 
evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and to 
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

2.3 The following section summarises the key elements of the Council’s 
governance arrangements in place during the year ended 31 March 2018 and 
up to the date of approval of the financial statements.

3. Key Elements of Allerdale Borough Council’s Governance Framework
3.1 There are a number of key elements to the systems and processes that 

comprise the Council’s governance arrangements, including:

Council, Leader & Executive Committee
 Provide leadership, develop and set policy
 Develop and set policy to achieve the priorities identified in the Council Plan
 Support Allerdale’s towns and communities to thrive and succeed

Senior Management Team & Statutory Officers
 The Head of Paid Service is the Chief Executive and is responsible for all 

council staff and leading an effective senior management team
 The Council’s Section 151 Officer is the Head of Financial Services and is 

responsible for ensuring proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs
 The Monitoring Officer is the Head of Governance and is responsible for 

ensuring legality and promoting high standards of public conduct

Page 64



Scrutiny & Audit
 Overview & Scrutiny Committee reviews Council policy and can challenge 

decisions
 Audit Committee reviews governance, costs vs budget and delivery of agreed 

Internal Audit plans

4. How we comply with the 2016 CIPFA Framework ‘Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government’

4.1 Allerdale Borough Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of 
Corporate Governance, the requirements of the 2016 Framework and a number 
of specific strategies and processes for strengthening corporate governance.

4.2 The Council structures its approach to compliance around the seven principles 
set out in the 2016 Framework.

PRINCIPLE A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment 
to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

4.3 The Monitoring Officer works with the Constitution Review Group to conduct 
regular reviews of the Council’s Constitution, including the decision-making 
framework and delegation arrangements, and makes recommendations for 
changes where appropriate.

4.4 The Council has a Code of Conduct for elected and co-opted Members, a Code 
of Conduct for employees and a Local Code of Corporate Governance that 
provides guidance for officers and members on expected standards of 
behaviours to ensure integrity.

4.5 Members receive annual training on Standards Arrangements, declarations of 
interests and the Code of Conduct as part of the Authority’s discharge of its 
statutory duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by its 

Risk Management
 Risk registers identify both 

operational and strategic risk
 Key risks are considered by the 

senior management team and 
Audit Committee every quarter

Decision-Making
 Constitution, Scheme of 

Delegation and decision-making 
process reviewed regularly

 All meetings held in public
 Decisions are recorded on the 

Council’s website

Page 65



members. The Code of Conduct focuses upon the Nolan principles of conduct 
in public life of selflessness, integrity, objectivity, accountability, openness, 
honesty, and leadership. It sets an objective, non-political and high standard 
whose purpose is to remind members of the behaviour expected of them in 
public life and to set out clearly the key principles against which their conduct is 
measured.

4.6 All employees participate in the Council’s framework of behaviours describing 
“What Great Looks Like”. The framework describes the strengths and 
behaviours that are important for every role, identifies areas of development for 
the workforce and defines the expected standards of behaviour for staff. 

4.7 The Monitoring Officer works closely with the Standards Committee and 
Independent Person on any complaints regarding the potential breach of the 
Code of Conduct by members. Complaints are handled in accordance with the 
Authority’s arrangements for dealing with standards allegations under the 
Localism Act 2011 and the outcome of such investigations are published on the 
Council’s website.

4.8 As part of its 2017/18 Plan, the Assurance Risk and Audit team completed a 
review of the ethical culture at the Council and identified actions to enhance 
and develop the current systems. The review examined the system of controls 
and procedures currently in operation to manage and maintain a culture based 
on strong ethical values aligned to the seven Nolan principles of public life. The 
review comprised a review of documentation, interviews with key officers, 
identification of systems and procedures and the completion of surveys by 
employees.

4.9 The Council has assessed its fraud risks based on the Fighting Fraud Locally 
2016-19 Checklist and created an action plan including establishing a 
Corporate Fraud Group comprising the Section 151 Officer, the Monitoring 
Officer, the Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager and representatives from other 
services. An e-learning fraud awareness package is available to all Council 
officers and fraud bulletins are published on the Council’s intranet monthly.

4.10 The Council updated its complaints system and procedures – including the 
Council’s mobile app – so that complainants are better able to submit 
complaints, track their progress and quickly access the outcome of complaints. 
The objective of the complaints process is to identify opportunities for 
improvements and to endeavour to resolve complaints satisfactorily at local 
level. The Council’s whistle blowing arrangements are publicly available to 
ensure there is a clear channel of confidential reporting for the public.

PRINCIPLE B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder 
engagement

4.11 All meetings are open to the public and all agenda papers, reports and 
decisions made by the Council are published on the Council’s website together 
with details of forthcoming consultation exercises, surveys and public meetings, 
except those determined as exempt from publication. All Council meetings are 
video-recorded for reference.

4.12 The Council engages with stakeholders and partners through a combination of 
joint working arrangements, partnership boards and representation on the 

Page 66



governing bodies of external organisations, neighbourhood forums, businesses 
and other local authorities.

4.13 The Council regularly consults on issues including on the proposed budget, 
changes in taxi fares, and the Housing Strategy, Economic Growth Plan and 
Heritage Strategy as well as the Local Plan (Part 2). When a consultation is 
held, the Council routinely includes all parish and town councils, as well as 
partner organisations such as Cumbria County Council. For the Local Plan a 
number of engagement events were held with staff and the public where people 
were encouraged to ask officers questions about the proposals. The Council 
also carries out a biannual survey of residents asking their views on things like 
council services, proposed budget savings, their local area, and their lifestyle. 
The survey is used to inform policy decisions and provide insight into the 
satisfaction levels of Council and other service providers. 

4.14 The Council publishes information relating to all of its expenditure on its website 
each month and publishes an annual Pay Policy Statement detailing the 
remuneration of senior officers. 

4.15 A range of media is used to inform residents and employees about the progress 
made in delivering  the Council’s plans including press releases, Facebook and 
Twitter.

PRINCIPLE C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, 
social, and environmental benefits

4.16 The Council Plan 2015-2019 sets out a strategic vision for the borough. It is 
reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that the Council’s priorities remain 
appropriate. The Council Plan was not altered in 2017.

4.17 To translate the Council Plan into clear delivery activities and targets a 
Corporate Business Plan was developed for 2017/18. The Business Plan sets 
out specific activity that will be undertaken towards achieving the objectives set 
out in the Council Plan and is the vehicle by which the Council reports progress 
against Council Plan commitments. The Business Plan gives a fuller picture of 
how the whole organisation contributes to the delivery of the priorities in the 
Council Plan. Along with setting out specific projects and activities, the 
Business Plan also sets out a series of key performance indicators under each 
Council Plan priority theme and identifies self-sufficiency targets against 
activities/projects. 

4.18 The Council’s decision-making process takes account of the economic, social 
and environmental impacts of policies and plans. Reports to committees require 
a consideration of these factors along with risk and financial implications.

4.19 The Council reviewed and updated its Equality Objectives in 2017/18 in line 
with the statutory requirements under the Public Sector Equality Duty. The 
report to Executive set out the progress the Council has made in embedding 
consideration of equality and diversity into planning and decision making; 
progress on achievement of objectives; recent activity that demonstrates the 

Page 67



Council’s commitment to equality and diversity and a summary of the available 
statistical data to support the rationale for the newly adopted priorities. The 
equality objectives will be reviewed again during 2018/19 alongside the 
development of the new Council Plan to ensure that in future our equality 
objectives are fully aligned to the Council Plan and integrated into our business 
planning processes.

PRINCIPLE D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the 
achievement of the intended outcomes

4.20 All decisions are subject to scrutiny by members, review of options and risk by 
officers and members and key performance indicators are in place for all 
services.

4.21 The senior management team monitor key performance indicators on a monthly 
basis to ensure that the Council’s priorities and performance targets are being 
met and potential intervention where expected performance is not being 
achieved. Progress against Council Plan priorities and performance more 
generally is reported to the Executive and Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
quarterly for discussion.

4.22 The Council has a programme of transformation projects. Budget proposals are 
developed by services, challenged and subject to scrutiny by the Corporate 
Leadership Team through the Star Chamber exercise. 

4.23 The Council regularly engages with other authorities to learn and understand 
how best practice has been delivered elsewhere. Together, these practices 
also provide assurance that Council is achieving best value.

PRINCIPLE E: Developing capacity and capability, including the capability 
of its leadership and the individuals within it

4.24 A key element of the Council’s service planning is to maximise the investment 
in staff through staff training and development including using its relationship 
with the Centre for Leadership Performance and the Apprenticeship Levy. All 
third tier managers have now completed leadership and management training. 
The Council also has an e-Learning package available to all employees and 
members as and when required.

4.25 All employees have development objectives identified as part of their ‘What 
Great Looks Like’ appraisal and complete quarterly reviews with their managers 
to discuss progress. 

4.26 Members are required to complete an induction following their election and 
receive an induction pack including all relevant policies and procedures. All 
members are given the opportunity and encouraged to develop individual 
personal development plans to identify development needs.

4.27 The Council works across a range of partnerships and collaborative 
arrangements, and uses commissioning and procurement processes to 
maximise capacity by delivering services in the most effective and efficient way.

Page 68



PRINCIPLE F: Managing risks and performance through robust internal 
control and strong public financial management

4.28 The risk management framework confirms the Council’s approach to identifying 
and controlling risk and is reviewed annually. The Council maintains a risks and 
issues log for corporate risks. Service risks are discussed with teams, reviewed 
and updated regularly and are escalated when necessary.

4.29 The Council’s Integrated Assurance Strategy brings together risk management, 
the three lines of defence model and assurance mapping as a means to aid 
setting and achieving objectives, promoting good governance and providing 
assurance. The senior management team and third tier managers attend risk 
facilitation workshops lead by the Assurance Risk and Audit Manager every six 
months. The Council has a Corporate Governance Group consisting of officers 
from across the Authority who meet throughout the year to assess the 
processes in place to produce a governance statement and to review progress 
on improvements in governance arrangements.

4.30 Service performance is monitored and is reported to the Executive committee 
quarterly. The Council’s Financial Regulations provide the governance 
framework for managing the Council’s financial affairs. The Council’s financial 
management arrangements conform to the governance requirements of 
CIPFA’s “Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local 
Government”. The Assurance, Risk and Audit team provide regular reports on 
the effective operation of processes and associated internal controls together 
with an annual assessment of the overall control environment. 

4.31 The Council employs officers with dedicated responsibility for information 
governance, security and records management. In addition to the Authority-
wide work on data protection pending the introduction of the new General Data 
Protection Regulation (GDPR), the team has introduced new guidance and 
trained all officers within the Council in connection with how information should 
be securely handled, transmitted, stored and maintained.

4.32 The Council consistently meets statutory deadlines for the publication and audit 
of its annual statement of accounts.

PRINCIPLE G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, 
and accountability

4.33 All reports, minutes and decisions are published on the Council’s website. The 
Council follows best practice on providing clear and accurate information and 
has developed both its website and the format of Council reports to improve 
transparency and accessibility.

4.34 At its Annual General Meeting in May 2017 and in accordance with the 
recommendations of a Peer Review conducted by the Local Government 
Association, the Council approved a restructure of its Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to support a robust and effective scrutiny function. The review 
included the development of a single committee structure supported by Task 
and Finish Groups aligned to Council priorities. The Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee holds decision-makers accountable and reports regularly to full 
Council with updates on its work and recommendations from any work 
completed.

Page 69



4.35 The Council reports regularly to elected members and senior management 
team on its operational and financial performance. The Council publishes 
information for all expenditure every month on its website to encourage 
openness and transparency of public spending.

4.36 All audit recommendations are reported to the Audit Committee, to ensure that 
officers undertake any follow-up actions as appropriate.

5 Review of Effectiveness of the Governance Framework
5.1 The Council is responsible for conducting, at least annually, a review of the 

effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal 
control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the managers 
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the 
governance environment, the Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager’s annual 
report and by comments made by the external auditors and other review 
agencies. 

5.2 The Council has used a number of ways to review and assess the effectiveness 
of its governance arrangements including a detailed review of the qualitative 
and quantitative evidence about the financial year 2017/18. 

5.3 The Governance Group, the Assurance, Risk and Audit team and others have 
reviewed key performance indicators and met with Heads of Service and third 
tier managers to discuss their areas. There have been consultations with the 
Monitoring Officer, the Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager and the s151 
Officer. All service areas completed managers’ assurance statements and the 
feedback has been analysed.
Assurance from Internal and External Audit

5.4 One of the key assurance statements the Council receives is the annual report 
and opinion of the Assurance, Risk and Audit Manager. The Assurance, Risk 
and Audit Manager’s opinion for 2017/18 concludes that the overall 
effectiveness of the Council’s risk management, control and governance 
processes are ‘substantial’.

5.5 The Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, provides assurance on the 
accuracy of the year-end Statement of Accounts and the overall adequacy of 
arrangements made by the Council for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources. The most recent Audit Letter, issued in 
October 2017, identified no material errors and noted that an unqualified 
opinion had been issued in respect of the 2016/17 accounts and that the 
Council had in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2017.
Self-assessment and review of performance 

5.6 Managers’ Assurance Statements, signed by Heads of Service, confirm codes 
of conduct, financial regulations, and other corporate governance processes 
have been operating as intended throughout the year. 

5.7 During 2017/18:
 no formal reports were issued by the S151 Officer or Monitoring Officer;
 no breaches of member or officer Codes of Conduct occurred;

Page 70



 no objections were received from local electors;
 no Judicial Review claims were successfully brought against the 

Council.
Follow-up issues and areas for improvement

5.8 There were no significant issues identified in last year’s annual governance 
statement for which it is necessary to provide an update.

6 Conclusion 
6.1 At the date of approval of the financial statements there were no significant 

governance issues requiring action. 

…………………………………….
Cllr Alan Smith
Leader of the Council
Allerdale Borough Council

Dated:

…………………………………….
Ian Frost
Chief Executive
Allerdale Borough Council

Dated:

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



 
 

Mr Ian Frost 
Chief Executive 
Allerdale Borough Council 
Allerdale House 
Workington 
Cumbria   
CA14 3YJ 
 
 
24 April 2018 

Dear Mr Frost   

Planned audit fee for 2018/19 
The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the Act) provides the framework for local 
public audit. Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA) has been specified as an 
appointing person under the Act and the Local Authority (Appointing Person) Regulations 
2015 and has the power to make auditor appointments for audits of opted- in local 
government bodies from 2018/19.   

For opted- in bodies PSAA's responsibilities include setting fees, appointing auditors and 
monitoring the quality of auditors' work. Further information on PSAA and its 
responsibilities are available on the PSAA website. 

From 2018/19 all grant work, including housing benefit certification, now falls outside the 
PSAA contract, as PSAA no longer has the power to make appointments for assurance on 
grant claims and returns. Any assurance engagements will therefore be subject to separate 
engagements agreed between the grant-paying body, the Council and ourselves and separate 
fees agreed with the Council. 

Scale fee 
PSAA published the 2018/19 scale fees for opted-in bodies in March 2018, following a 
consultation process.  Individual scale fees have been reduced by 23 percent from the fees 
applicable for 2017/18. Further details are set out on the PSAA website. The Council's scale 
fee for 2018/19 has been set by PSAA at £37,059 (£48,128 in 2017/18).    

PSAA prescribes that 'scale fees are based on the expectation that audited bodies are able to 
provide the auditor with complete and materially accurate financial statements, with 
supporting working papers, within agreed timeframes'.  

The audit planning process for 2018/19, including the risk assessment, will continue as the 
year progresses and fees will be reviewed and updated as necessary as our work progresses.  

Scope of the audit fee 
There are no changes to the overall work programme for audits of local government audited 
bodies for 2018/19.  Under the provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, 
the National Audit Office (NAO) is responsible for publishing the statutory Code of Audit 
Practice and guidance for auditors. Audits of the accounts for 2018/19 will be undertaken 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
4 Hardman Square 
Spinningfields 
Manchester 
M3 3EB 
 
T +44 (0161) 953 6900         
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 
 

 

 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



 2

under this Code. Further information on the NAO Code and guidance is available on the 
NAO website. 

The scale fee covers: 
 our audit of your financial statements; 
 our work to reach a conclusion on the economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of 

resources (the value for money conclusion); and 
 our work on your whole of government accounts return. 
 
PSAA will agree fees for considering objections from the point at which auditors accept an 
objection as valid, or any special investigations, as a variation to the scale fee. 
 
Value for Money conclusion 
The Code requires us to consider whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. This is known as 
the Value for Money (VfM) conclusion. 
 
The NAO issued its latest guidance for auditors on value for money work in November 2017. 
The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are required to give a 
conclusion on whether the Council has put proper arrangements in place. 
 
The NAO guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate: 
In all significant respects, the audited body had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 
people.  
 
Billing schedule 
Fees will be billed as follows: 
 

Main Audit fee £ 

September 2018 9,265 

December 2018            9,265 

March 2019 9,265 
June 2019 9,264 

Total 37,059 
 
 
Outline audit timetable 
We will undertake our audit planning and interim audit procedures in December 2018 to 
March 2019. Upon completion of this phase of our work we will issue a detailed audit plan 
setting out our findings and details of our audit approach. Our final accounts audit, work on 
the VfM conclusion and work on the whole of government accounts return will be 
completed by 31 July 2019. 
 
  

Page 74



 3

 
Phase of work 

Timing Outputs Comments 

Audit planning 
and interim audit 

December 2018 to 
March 2019 

Audit plan The plan summarises the 
findings of our audit 
planning and our approach 
to the audit of the 
Council's accounts and 
VfM. 

Final accounts 
audit 

June to July 2019 Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

This report sets out the 
findings of our accounts 
audit and VfM work for the 
consideration of those 
charged with governance. 

VfM conclusion December 2018 to 
July 2019 

Audit Findings 
(Report to those 
charged with 
governance) 

As above 

Whole of 
government 
accounts 

July 2019 Opinion on the 
WGA return 

This work will be 
completed alongside the 
accounts audit. 

Annual audit letter September 2019 Annual audit letter 
to the Council 

The letter will summarise 
the findings of all aspects 
of our work. 

 
Our team 
The key members of the audit team for 2018/19 are:  

 Name Phone Number E-mail 

Engagement 
Lead 

John Farrar 0161 234 6384 /  
07880 456200 

john.farrar@uk.gt.com 
 

Engagement 
Manager 

Richard McGahon 0141 223 0889 / 
07880 456156 

richard.a.mcgahon@uk.gt.com 
 

In Charge 
Auditor 

Richard Anderson 0141 223 0753 richard.j.anderson@uk.gt.com 
 

 
  

Page 75



 4

Additional work 
The scale fee excludes any work requested by the Council that we may agree to undertake 
outside of our Code audit.  Each additional piece of work will be separately agreed and a 
detailed project specification and fee agreed with the Council. 

Quality assurance 
We are committed to providing you with a high quality service.  If you are in any way 
dissatisfied, or would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in 
the first instance. Alternatively you may wish to contact Sarah Howard, our Public Sector 
Assurance regional lead partner, via Sarah.Howard@uk.gt.com. 

 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

 
 

John Farrar 
Engagement Lead 

For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

 

Page 76


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Monday 19 February 2018 of Audit Committee
	5 Assurance Risk and Audit Year End Report 2017/18
	appendix a
	appendix b
	Q1 How would you rate your overall satisfaction with us?
	Q2 Please rate our Assurance risk and Audit€officer on the following attributes
	Q3 How would you rate the below aspects of the audit?
	Q4 Do you feel the Audit has added value to your service?
	Q5 Do you agree or disagree that the Auditor was knowledgeable and insightful when making recommendations and providing assurance around key controls?
	Q6 We are continually looking for ways to improve the quality€and delivery of our service. What changes would most improve our service?

	appendix c

	6 Assurance Risk and Audit Plan and Strategy 2018/19
	appendix a
	appendix b

	7 Draft Annual Governance Statement 2017/18
	Appendix 1

	8 Grant Thornton Fee Letter 2018/19

